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Chairman’s Statement

EFHE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited (& Xi&EEBR A7) (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2010 following our successful listing on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 12 July 2010 (the “Listing”).

Following the Listing, we have worked diligently to carry out the
expansion plans as set out in the Company’s prospectus, and to
maximize return for our shareholders. In order to diversify the variety
of scrap materials handled by the Group and also to establish a
wider coverage area, the Group decided to expand its processing
capability by establishing two new joint venture companies in
Shanghai and Hong Kong during the last quarter of 2010. The
Shanghai joint venture company focuses on steel scrap processing.
As for the Hong Kong joint venture, we are looking to establish a
visible processing facility capable of handling various types of scrap
materials, and in line with the Hong Kong Government’s intention to
develop a more regulated and environmentally friendly infrastructure
for the recycling industry. We believe through the establishment of
these new facilities, we will increase our market shares in the metal
scrap business within the region.

With increasing global demand for limited natural mining resources,
various industry reports have indicated that future supply will not be
able to keep up with future demand and that scrap metal recycling
is regarded as a key solution to future demand and environmental
concerns. To capitalize on such market opportunities, the Group
continued to place strong emphasis on capturing and securing
supply of raw materials from proven sources of scrap metal through
its well established overseas procurement network. We believe the
current strategies will allow our Group to build on its solid foundation
as a leading player in the rapidly expanding scrap metal recycling
business and further establish our position as a leading scrap metal
recycler in the PRC.

During January 2011, we have also announced our plans to expand
into other parts of mainland China by signing two letters of intent (1)
to acquire a majority shareholding in a Beijing company with special
licence to handle scrap vehicles recycling business and (2) to establish
a new joint venture company in Tianjin with capacity of handling
various scrap processing activities. Once the investment terms
have been confirmed and signed, announcements relating to these
investments will be made.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EEHRE(E)

The PRC Government has recently stated in its “12th Five-Year
Plan” that the fundamental policies in resource conservation and
environmental protection would include energy saving, reduction
of greenhouse gas emissions density, development of recycling
economy and promotion of low carbon technologies, thereby taking
the path of sustainable development. In February 2011, the joint
statement issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information, the
Ministry of Science and Technology and the Ministry of Finance on
“Regulating and promoting the development of non-ferrous metal
recycling industry” aims to accelerate the restructuring, consolidating,
regulating and upgrading the metal recycling industry in the PRC
with the intention to achieve a sustainable growth in this business
sector. Also stated in the joint statement, the PRC Government
strongly encourages increase in import of non-ferrous scrap metals
to compensate the shortages that the PRC is currently facing. We
are confident that our current position and business strategy will
allow the Group to be one of the main beneficiaries of such policies
going forward.

In 2011, we remain committed to further expand our processing
capability, and at the same time improving our profitability and
return on equity. We are optimistic about our current positioning and
business strategy against an improving world market condition, and
in particular the encouraging signs of support recently stated by the
PRC Government, but will be on the lookout for any potential volatility
in the metal markets in the year ahead.

Fang Ankong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 11 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THBFWEAS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the year ended 31 December 2010, we have achieved
better than expected performance both in terms of revenue and
profitability. Our revenue exceeded HK$5.9 billion (2009: HK$2.3
billion), representing an increase of 153.6% from the previous year.
With regard to the profitability, we recorded a net profit of HK$352.6
million (2009: HK$187.6 million (without taking into account the write
back of the inventory provision)). Our performance in 2010 reflected
the continuous strong demand of our recycled products during the
year.

On 12 July 2010, the Company’s shares were successfully listed
on the Stock Exchange. This marked a major milestone in the
development of our Group. Net proceeds from the Listing amounted
to approximately HK$581.0 million and majority of the funds raised
continued to be used for procurement of raw materials and investing
in business developments in the PRC.

Backed by the continuous strong demand in the PRC and the
funds raised from the Listing, the Group continued to increase its
procurement volume of raw materials to cater for expansion plan
going forward. During the year, we have sold over 518,600 tonnes
of processed products from our three business segments. This
represents an increase of 84.6% when compared with over 280,900
tonnes in the previous year.

In 2010, price volatility remained high especially between May and
September. On the back of such volatile market condition and the
differences in sales mix, we managed to achieve an overall gross
profit margin of 9.6% (2009: 10.5% (without taking into account the
write back of inventory provision)) which is in line with management
expectation. We continued our usual practices of buying mixed
metal scrap and selling its recycled products in accordance with our
processing ability so as to mitigate the short-term impact of price
volatility on our overall performance.

Basic earnings per share amounted to HK$0.41 (2009: HK$0.56 and
HK$0.25 (without taking into account the write back of the inventory
provision)), representing a decrease of 26.8% and an increase of
64.0% (without taking into account the write back of the inventory
provision) when compared with the previous year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRES ()

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)
Our Procurement Network

We are the largest importer of mixed metal scrap used for recycling,
reuse and processing in terms of the total import volume as
approved by the Ministry of Environmental Protection in the PRC.
We import nearly all of our mixed metal scrap and have, over the
years, developed a strong international procurement network which
covers Europe, North America, Oceania and Asia. Our network of
suppliers are mostly established and developed by us leveraging on
our experience in the industry. With our good business practices, we
have enjoyed good business relationship with our suppliers over the
years.

Corporate and Business Development

We believe the year 2010 represents an important milestone in the
development of our Group. On 12 July 2010, the Company’s shares
were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Net proceeds from the Listing amounted to approximately HK$581.0
million and majority of the funds raised was being and will be used
for procurement of raw materials and in the areas of business
development. Consequently, we have further established ourselves as
a key participant in the scrap metal recycling industry and have also
established a solid foundation on which business developments can
be built upon in a more effective and efficient manners.

In line with the management’s expansion plan and as indicated
in the Company’s prospectus, the Company applied HK$290.0
million out of the net proceeds to increase purchase of raw materials
and at the same time applied a total of HK$74.2 million out of net
proceeds to expand the processing and production capacity in our
existing Ningbo plant and to expand operating facilities through
the establishment of two new joint venture companies in Shanghai
and Hong Kong during the second half of 2010. Details of the joint
venture companies can be found in the Company’s announcements.

With the injection of additional capital to expand the processing
and production capacity in our Ningbo plant, the annual capacity
combining Taizhou and Ningbo for 2011 will be increased to over
600,000 tonnes. Since the two new joint venture companies were
only established in the last quarter of 2010, their results have
insignificant impact to the overall performance of the Group in 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEFWED N (E)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)
Social Responsibilities

On the environmental protection front, we continued to place
emphasis on ensuring that all of our processing facilities are in line
with local and national environmental protection standards. As
announced by the Environmental Protection Department of Zhejiang
Province (T A IREREEE), our Taizhou facilities have obtained
the highest verification result among the designated processing units
for imported hardware and electrical appliance scrap, electric wire
and cable scrap, as well as motor scrap in Zhejiang Province. Our
production processes do not consume large volumes of electricity
and water and therefore produce very small volumes of waste
materials. We consider that we have adopted sufficient environmental
protection measures and controls against air, water, solids and noise
pollutions produced during the course of our production process.

We are committed to extend our social responsibilities when setting
up facilities in major cities of the PRC to contribute to the successful
development of an environmentally friendly recycling industry.

Prospects

With encouraging signs indicating that the world economy is
gradually recovering, and the increasing signs of support from the
PRC Government to develop the recycling industry especially the
“12th Five-Year-Plan” stated recently by the PRC Government, we
believe the metal recycling industry in the PRC will continue to grow
and will become an important source and an integral part of the
metal resource supply chain of the PRC in the foreseeable future.

We strongly believe in the importance of building a sustainable
and environmentally responsible business. The metal recycling
industry is in the forefront and plays a vital role in ensuring that the
future production and supply of ferrous and non-ferrous metals
are conducted in a sustainable and environmentally responsible
manners. Metal recycling contributes significantly to the protection
of the environment and to the preservation of valuable natural
resources, including the use of energy, which are consumed in large
quantities during primary metal production processes. On the basis
of the above stated fundamental belief, we continue to increase our
procurement volume in line with the rapidly increasing demand and
our expansion strategy for scrap raw materials in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRES ()

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)
Prospects (continued)

With regard to business developments, we are actively seeking
potential merger and acquisition opportunities and have recently
identified two targets in Beijing and Tianjin (Details of both potential
merger and acquisitions can be found in the recent Company’s
announcement). Through the Beijing and Tianjin investments, we
intend to participate in the scrap vehicle recycling and more diverse
recycling businesses in the regions. We believe that as an increasing
number of vehicles are produced in the PRC, there will also be an
increasing demand for scrap vehicles, which the Group identifies as
an emerging business opportunities in the PRC.

Towards the end of 2010, our Shanghai joint venture started to
supply processed ferrous scrap to neighbouring steel mills, and we
believe that such business relationship would enable our Shanghai
joint venture to continue increasing the capacity and hence to
increase the sales volume going forward. We expect the processing
capacity for our Shanghai joint venture to reach 300,000 tonnes in
the coming year.

Following the formation of the Hong Kong joint venture, we plan to
build an advanced recycling facility capable of handling more diverse
scrap materials. In 2011, we expect to materialise continuing growth
in both volume and profitability.

With the PRC Government policies stated in its “12th Five-Year
Plan”, we are confident that our current position and business
strategy will allow the Group to be benefited in such policies going
forward.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEENWRES ()

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)
Detailed Comparison of Profit and Loss Summary

275 E R R 2 ()
SRR E

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-RA=1+—HLEE

2010 2009
—g-%F —TThS
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
Revenue e 5,931,589 2,339,243
Cost of sales THERA (5,361,645) (1,784,806)
Gross profit EF 569,944 554,437
Gross profit (without taking into account FEF| (5t Kk B E17 S#4)
the write back of the inventory
provision) 569,944 245,824
Gross profit margin FFH= 9.6% 23.7%
Gross profit margin (without taking FEF|Z (st LB L 7F S E)
into account the write back of the
inventory provision) 9.6% 10.5%
Net profit HEF 352,556 419,654
Net profit (without taking into account #EF|( st M B EFEEE)
the write back of the inventory
provision) 352,556 187,587

Since the sharp collapse in world metal prices during the fourth
quarter of 2008, the market prices of our recycled metal products
have remained at a lower level in the first half of 2009 and the
increase in demand of our recycled products during 2009 resulting
in 2009 overall gross profit of HK$187.6 million (without taking into
account the write back of the inventory provision). With the strong
recovery in world metal prices since the second half of 2009, and
the strong encouragement from the PRC Government to use
recycling materials, we achieved an encouraging overall gross profit
of HK$569.9 million in 2010. Hence, a net profit of HK$352.6 million
was recorded in the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEFWED N (E)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)
Detailed Comparison of Profit and Loss Summary
(continued)

We continued to increase our purchase volumes to cater for
processing needs through our well established overseas procurement
network since the second half of 2009. During the year, we sold over
518,600 tonnes (2009: 280,900 tonnes) of our processed products
within our three business segments, representing an increase of
84.6% over 2009.

In 2010, price volatility remained high especially between May and
September. On the back of such volatile market condition and the
differences in sales mix, we managed to achieve an overall gross
profit margin of 9.6% (2009: 10.5% (without taking into account the
write back of the inventory provision)) which is generally in line with
management expectation. During the year, we continued to follow
our usual practices of consistently buying mixed metals scrap and
selling our recycled products in accordance with our processing
ability so as to mitigate the short-term impact of price volatility on our
overall performance.

With the signs indicating the world economy is recovering slowly,
and the increasing support from the PRC government as stated
in the recent “12th Five-Year-Plan”, the Group believes the metal
recycling industry in the PRC will continue to grow and will become
an important source of metal resources in the future. In February
2011, a joint statement was issued by the Ministry of Industry and
Information, the Ministry of Science and Technology and the Ministry
of Finance on “Regulating, and promoting the development of non-
ferrous metal recycling industry” aims to accelerate the restructuring,
consolidating, regulating and upgrading the metal recycling industry
in PRC with the intention to achieve a sustainable growth in this
business sector. The joint statement also stated that the PRC
Government strongly encourages increase in import of non-ferrous
scrap metals to compensate the shortages that the PRC is currently
facing.

The management also believes that the metal recycling industry
plays a vital role in the production and the supply of ferrous and
non - ferrous metals. It contributes significantly to the protection
of the environment and to the preservation of valuable natural
resources, including energy, which are consumed in large quantities
during primary metal production processes. With this in mind and in
accordance with our expansion strategy, we are aiming to procure
50,000 to 60,000 tonnes of mixed metal scrap materials a month to
cater for its processing needs. Such purchase volume is expected to
increase as we continue to expand. The management is committed
to continue making efforts to capitalize on such direction in achieving
satisfactory returns to the Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue increased by HK$3.6 billion, or 153.6%, from HK$2.3
billion in 2009 to HK$5 .9 billion in the year. The increase was mainly
contributed by an increase in sales volume as well as average selling
prices for our recycled metal products and foundry products.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales increased by HK$3.3 billion, or 156.1%, from HK$2.1
billion in 2009 (without taking into account the write back of the
inventory provision) to HK$5.4 billion in the year. The increase is in
line with the increase in revenue and primarily due to an increase in
sales volume and in the average purchase prices of raw materials.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit for the year was HK$569.9 million as compared to
a gross profit of HK$245.8 million (without taking into account the
write back of the inventory provision) for 2009. The write back of the
inventory provision in 2009 was made in line with the recovery of
world metal prices when compared with the cost of our inventory.
We recorded a gross profit margin (without taking into account the
write back of the inventory provision) of 10.5% last year as compared
to gross profit margin in the year of 9.6%.

The decrease in overall gross profit margin when compared with
the gross profit margin without taking into account the write back
of the inventory provision in 2009 was mainly due to price volatility
remained high especially between May and September 2010 and the
differences in sales mix during the year, we managed to achieve an
overall gross profit margin of 9.6% (2009: 10.5% (without taking into
account the write back of inventory provision)) which is generally in
line with management expectation.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately HK$11
million, or 611.1%, from HK$1.8 million in 2009 to HK$12.8 million in
the year due to increase in sales volume. The distribution costs were
mainly incurred for the delivery of our foundry products directly to our
customers.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$39.3
million, or 112.6%, from HK$34.9 million in 2009 to HK$74.2
million in the year. This was mainly due to additional expenses for
salaries and allowances, professional and legal fees, and share-base
payment incurred during the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Other income

Other income increased by approximately HK$5.8 million, or 101.8%,
from HK$5.7 million in 2009 to HK$11.5 million in the year. This was
mainly due to increase in interest income during the year.

Other gains and losses

Other gains decreased by approximately HK$43.2 million from
HK$98.2 million in 2009 to HK$55.0 million in the year mainly
due to the fact that we had significantly reduced positions in the
commodities derivative market during the first half of 2010. To offset
such decrease, an amount of approximately HK$43.6 million of net
exchange gains were recorded during the year.

Other expenses
Other expenses increased by approximately HK$19.1 million mainly
due to one-off listing expenses incurred during the year.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately HK$13.8 million, or
47.9%, from HK$28.8 million in 2009 to HK$42.6 million in the year.
This was mainly due to increase in bank borrowings.

Profit for the year and net profit margin

As a result of the factors discussed above, the net profit for the year
increased by HK$165.0 million, or 88.0% from HK$187.6 million
(without taking into account the write back of the inventory provision)
in 2009 to HK$352.6 million in the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Key Financial Ratios

The following table sets forth certain of our financial ratios as of the
date for the periods indicated:
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&

Liquidity Ratios REBESLER
At 31 December
R+=—B=+—8
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
Current ratio BN % 1.75 1.41
Quick ratio REDLL 0.54 0.43
Gearing ratio (%) BEEELE(%) 41.8 43.2
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HILEE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
Inventory turnover days GFERERH 118 178
Debtor’s turnover days JE LS R FE % A 2 6 7
Creditor’s turnover days FERTBR B8 B & 7 14

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure
Included in net current assets were cash and various bank deposits
totalling HK$603.0 million (2009: HK$316.4 million). Total bank
borrowings were HK$1.5 billion (2009: HK$799.0 million), and these
were mainly used to finance the purchases of mixed metal scrap
from overseas. Such borrowings are mainly denominated in United
States dollars and Renminbi.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2010 was 41.8%
(2009: 43.2%). This was mainly due to net increase in total assets
during the year.

Debtor’s turnover days and creditor’s turnover days were both
decreased from 7 days and 14 days for the year ended 31 December
2009 to 6 days and 7 days for the year ended 31 December 2010
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure
(continued)

Inventory turnover days decreased from 178 days for the year ended
31 December 2009 to 118 days for the year ended 31 December
2010. We target to maintain our inventory turnover days within 90
days, and our management is working to balance our processing
need and at the same time reduce the inventory turnover days
further so as to meet such target.

Following the Listing on 12 July 2010, the Group’s liquidity position
became stronger as indicated by the above ratios and this would
allow the Group to be in a better position to work in accordance with
its business directions.

Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2010, we had pledged certain buildings, land
use rights and bank deposits with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$491.5 million (2009: approximately HK$328.6
million) to secure bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2010, we had capital commitments in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment but not provided for in
the consolidated financial statements amounted to HK$10.4 million
(2009: HK$4.8 million).

As at the date of this report, the Board is not aware of any material
contingent liabilities.

Risk Management

Our Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market
risk such as commodities price risk, foreign currencies risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Our risk management strategy
aims to minimize the adverse effects of these risks on its financial
performance.

With the establishment of the Pricing Committee, a new formal
hedging policy took effect on 23 June 2010 which aimed to enhance
the Group’s risk management of commodity price fluctuations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Risk Management (continued)

As part of its foreign currency risk management, we continued to buy
US dollars forward contracts during the year primarily to mitigate our
exposure to fluctuation of the exchange rate between US dollars and
Renminbi whilst taking advantage of the favourable forward contract
exchange rates. We will continue to adhere to this hedging strategy
so long as the forward contracts rate justifies it.

With the current interest rates staying at relatively low levels, we have
not entered into any interest rate hedging contracts or any other
interest rate related derivative financial instrument. However, we
continue to monitor its related interest rate exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure when the need
arises.

As for credit risk, we continue to follow the trade practices of cash on
collection from sales of all of its metal recycling products in order to
minimize the carrying amounts of the financial assets in our Group’s
financial statements. In addition, we will continue to monitor closely
the trade debtors for the Foundry business to minimize potential
impairment losses.

With the liquidity risk, we will continue maintaining a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of bank
borrowings.

Related Party Transactions

Starting from 12 July 2010, all related party transactions that existed
in prior to 2009 were discontinued. Pursuant to the Capitalisation
Issue as indicated in the Company’s prospectus, our Group had
subsequent to 30 June 2010 capitalised amounts due to related
parties of HK$223.7 million. Aside from the sum of HK$50.0 million
paid out of the proceeds of the Listing to settle such amounts due to
related parties, our Group has settled all remaining amounts due to
related parties before or upon listing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Funds raised by the Company’s initial public offering and
use of proceeds

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange during the year
and proceeds, less listing expenses, amounted to approximately
HK$581.0 million, was raised by the public offering. During the year
ended 31 December 2010, the net proceeds were utilised as follows:
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HK$ million

BEER

Purchase raw material 18R AR 290.0
Enhancement of procurement network and BBAENE - AR BIRFAIRE

capabilities through joint ventures, s ae

mergers or acquisition 19.9

Expansion of production capacity RAEEREN 54.3

Repayment of shareholder’s loan BERRER 50.0

General working capital —REEES 51.0

The remaining amounts of approximately HK$115.8 million will be
used before the year 2012 and we are actively seeking supplier to
enhance our procurement network.

Employees

As at 31 December 2010, we had a workforce of 449 employees. In
addition, we engaged approximately 3,730 separation and selection
workers through local contractors. We have not experienced any
strikes, work stoppages or significant labor disputes which have
affected its operations in the past and it has not experienced any
significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff. We
continue to maintain good relationships with our employees.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The Remuneration Policy

We remunerates employees based on their performance, experience
and prevailing industry practices so as to retain competent
employees. In addition to benefits normally provided in line with
industry practices, the Company also has a share option scheme
in place for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the
eligible persons including employees of Group companies for their
contributions to the long term success of our Group.

As indicated in the Company’s prospectus the Company granted
Pre-IPO share options to acquire shares in the Company to 36
employees and directors of the Group. In September 2010, 3.77
million Post-IPO share options were granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme.
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Directors’ Report

EFENRS

The Directors are pleased to present the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESSES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
of the Group on page 48.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors proposed the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2010 of HK9 cents per ordinary share
(“Final Dividend”). The proposed Final Dividend will be paid to the
shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s Register of
Members on 8 April 2011. The proposed Final Dividend will be paid
in the form of scrip dividend with shareholders being given an option
to elect to receive cash in lieu of all or part of their scrip dividend
entitlements (“Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme will be subject to (i) the approval of the
proposed Final Dividend at the 2011 Annual General Meeting; and
(i) the Stock Exchange granting listing of and permission to deal in
the new shares to be allotted thereunder. Full details of the Scrip
Dividend Scheme will be set out in a circular to be dispatched to the
shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

RESERVES
Details of the movement in reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2010, the distribution reserve of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$741,384,000.

DONATIONS
The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$126,430 (2009: approximately HK$63,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
In 2010, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for 9.4%
(2009:13.8%) of the total purchases. The five largest suppliers
comprised 43.2% (2009:38.3%) of total purchases.

In 2010, the Group’s largest customers accounted for 8.3%
(2009:3.1%) of the total revenue. The five largest customers
comprised 18.5% (2009:10.0%) of total revenue.

So far as the Directors of the Company is aware, neither the
Directors, their associates nor any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major customers
and suppliers.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fang Ankong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen (Vice President)

Mr. Gu Liyong (Vice President)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Loke Yu
(appointed on 23 June 2010)
Ms. Zhang Jingdong
(appointed on 23 June 2010)
Mr. Li Xikui
(appointed on 23 June 2010)

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Fang Ankong, Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, Mr. Gu Liyong, Mr.
Ralph Sytze Ybema, Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li
Xikui shall retire from office, and being eligible offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company on 24 June 2010 for a period for three
years. None of the Directors of the Company proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contact with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellows subsidiaries
or its holding companies was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
As at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors of the Company
has interests in businesses which compete or are likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements which are also
the discloseable connected transaction pursuant to Listing Rules.
In the opinion of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, these
transactions entered into by the Group were:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) either (@) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there was no
available comparison, on terms that were fair and reasonable so
far as the shareholders of the Company were concerned; and

(iiy either (a) in accordance with the terms of the arrangements;
or (b) where there were no such agreements, on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties.

(iv) within the relevant cap amounts as agreed by the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which
need to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has two share option schemes namely, the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
which were adopted on 23 June 2010.

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) on 23 June 2010 under which
the Company has conditionally granted options to certain Directors,
senior management and employees of the Group to purchase shares
of the Company with an exercise price equal to the offer price as
defined in the Prospectus.

The total number of shares in respect of which share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2010
was 12,140,000 which represented approximately 1.21% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2010.
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EESHRE(H)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BB REST B (&)
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (@) BRAFEERIEBETE(8)
As at 31 December 2010, details of the share option granted under HR-ZE—ZF+—-HA=+—H ' BEEIA
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: B E AT 2 FTIR E R RREE S B 0
T
Date of Grant Exercisable period
(dd/mm/yyyy) Exercise price (dd/mm/yyyy)
(Note 1) per share (Note 2) Number of ~ Approximate
RHBEH (HKS) 1T underlying  percentage of
Grantees (B/B/f) BRITHEE (B/B/%) shares  shareholding
ERA (MzE 1) (&7T) (M= 2) JHERGEE #OEREIL
() Directors &%
Mr. Fang Ankong 23/06/2010 2.43 12/07/2011 - 12/07/2012 1,050,000 0.10500%
FRELE —E-FF —T——FtA+=ZAZE
~AZ+=A “E-——H%+A+=H
138/07/2012 - 12/07/2013 1,050,000 0.10500%
“E-—F+tA+t=HZE
“E-=F+tA+=H
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 1,400,000 0.14000%
“F-=FtAt+=RE
—E-mFELA+TZA
3,500,000 0.35000%
Mr. Gu Liyong 23/06/2010 2.43 12/07/2011 - 12/07/2012 127,500 0.01275%
BFEALE “E-TF —E——%tA+=ZH=ZE
NAZtT=H —ET——H+A+=H
13/07/2012 - 12/07/2013 127,500 0.01275%
—T-—FtA+=AZ
“E-=FtA+=H
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 170,000 0.01700%
“E-—=FtA+t=HZE
—E-mFE+A+=H

425,000 0.04250%

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Annual Report 2010
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EEERE (R
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) BERRREETEI(E)
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (@) BRAFEERIEBETE(8)
Date of Grant Exercisable period
(dd/mm/yyyy) Exercise price (dd/mm/yyyy)
(Note 1) per share (Note 2) Number of  Approximate
R AH (HKS) 1768 underlying  percentage of
Grantees (B/B/%) BRITEE (B/B/%) shares  shareholding
EREA (MzE 1) (&) (M 2) HEEROGHE BAFKREIL
Mr. Stephanus Maria 23/06/2010 2.43 12/07/2011 - 12/07/2012 300,000 0.03000%
van Qoijen —E-2F —T——F+A+ZHF
Stephanus Mariavan ~ 7NA-+=H “E-—F+A+=H
Ooilensc 4
13/07/2012 - 12/07/2013 300,000 0.03000%
“E-—Ft+A+t=HZE
—E-=F+tA+T=H
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 400,000 0.04000%
—E—=FtA+t=H=Z
“EZ-NELA+=H
1,000,000 0.1000%
4,925,000 0.49250%
(i) Employees 128 23/06/2010 2.43 12/07/2011 - 12/07/2012 2,164,500 0.21645%
—T-TF —T——FtA+=AZE
~NAZ+=A —E-——H%+A+=H
13/07/2012 - 12/07/2013 2,164,500 0.21645%
—E-—Ft+tA+t=HZE
—E-=F+tA+=H
13/07/2013 - 12/07/2014 2,886,000 0.28860%
—E—=FtA+t=H=Z
“Z-ELA+=H
7,215,000 0.72150%
Total &&f 12,140,000 1.21400%

BaXEEARAT £ 2010 o5
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

(1) It was the date when the Company offered to the grantees the options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

(2) Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to exercise:

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any time during
the period commencing from the date of the first anniversary of the
Listing Date to the date of the second anniversary of the Listing Date
(both days inclusive);

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any time during
the period commencing from the date immediately following the date
of the second anniversary of the Listing Date to the date of the third
anniversary of the Listing Date (both days inclusive); and

(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted, at any time during
the period commencing from the date immediately following the date
of the third anniversary of the Listing Date to the date of the fourth
anniversary of the Listing Date (both days inclusive).

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the
“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) on 23 June 2010, which was
approved by the shareholders’ written resolutions, is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years. It is a share incentive scheme
and is established to recognize and acknowledge the contribution
that the eligible participants have or may have made to the Group.
Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Board may,
at its discretion, offer to grant an option to any Director, employee,
advisor, consultant, distributor, contractor, supplier, customer,
agent, business partner, joint venture business partner, promoter,
service provider of any member of the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 100,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company as at 31 December 2010.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme to eligible participants in any 12 months period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as
as the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the approval of shareholders in a general
meeting.

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not be less
than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant;
(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (i) the nominal value of a
Share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) O EXAFREESRERETE(8)

As at 31 December 2010, details of the share option granted under R—=F —EE—I—_H =+—H  BEEXIA
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

BT S (,%E)

PSRBT BIPTR BB RE B

™

Date of Grant Exercisable period

(dd/mm/yy) Exercise price (dd/mm/yy) Approximate

(Note 1) per share (Note 2) Number of percentage of

EHAH (HKS$) 1TEHA underlying shareholding

Grantees (B/B/%F) BRIEE (BB %) shares AR

ARA (Bf=E) (A7) (fisE 2) rERAR D EE Aotk

Employees 22/09/2010 3.38 22/09/2011 — 22/09/2012 1,131,000 0.11310%
=1 —=-ZF —E——FhAZ+=ZAHE
hA=-+=H —E-—FhA=+=AH

23/09/2012 — 22/09/2013 1,131,000 0.11310%
—E——FhA-+=HE
—=FNLA=+=H

23/09/2013 — 22/09/2014 1,508,000 0.15080%
—E-=FhA=-+=BZ
—E-UFNALA=-+H

Total &5t

3,770,000 0.37700%

Notes:

(1) It was the date when the Company offered to the grantees the options
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

(2) Each of the grantees to whom options have been conditionally granted
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to exercise:

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any time during
the period commencing from the first anniversary of the Date of Grant
to the date of the second anniversary of the Date of Grant (both days
inclusive);

(i) up to 30% of the total number of options granted at any time during
the period commencing from the date immediately following the
second anniversary of the Date of Grant to the date of the third
anniversary of the Date of Grant (both days inclusive); and

(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted, at any time during
the period commencing from the date immediately following the third
anniversary of the Date of Grant to the date of the fourth anniversary
of the Date of Grant (both days inclusive).

Saved as disclosed as above, no options were granted, cancelled
or lapsed as at 31 December 2010. The consideration paid by each
grantee for each grant of option is HK$1.00.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2010, the Directors and chief executives of the
Company and their associates had the following interests in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, or were
required to be entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO:

e
FEREBARABRARTRH

H s MoK R
R-FE-ZF+_A=+—H ARAIE=F
REBITRABRBEFOBEARRNRR]LR
HiRBORE (E & R(EFRIERDDEXV
BB R R ARRE R (D AR IBCE S M B
fEBIEXVER 7 R8I (BIEIRE(ES K
HERPDERGXE R SRR RE)
HRIELETRTAESETESFRZNRE
STRIZAFE AR R R B3P+ sZARIR(E
# MEIE IGH)FEIS2{GEF FR AR RIIIRA
fit e pE RS -

Number of
underlying
shares

(in respect of

share options) Approximate

(Note 1) percentage
1EEBR1D  of total number
Number of  (HEIEMHEE) of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest issued shares 2B L2 ERRRRERY
EEnA B ERME EHTRHOHE (Pf=E1) BRBEDE
Mr. Fang Ankong Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 - 40.50%
&2 (Note 2)
MREEGVER 2w (iEE2)
Beneficial owner (Note 3) - 3,500,000 0.35%
BnEBA (MEE3)
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 - 40.50%
QOoaijen (Note 4)
Stephanus Maria van NEAEERE 2w (MiFE4)
Ooijent & Beneficial owner (Note 5) - 1,000,000 0.10%
EmEAA (KMiEEs)
Mr. Gu Liyong Beneficial owner (Note 6) - 425,000 0.043%

BFBEEL EmlAA (Mie)
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company and Its Associated Corporation

(continued)
Notes:

1. The share options were granted, under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme of the Company, adopted on 23 June 2010.

2. 345,000,000 shares are directly held by HWH Holdings Limited (“HWH”)
which is wholly owned by Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”). Green Elite
Limited (“Green Elite”) holds 60,000,000 shares in the Company and is
equally owned by HWH and Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”). Therefore,
Mr. Fang is deemed to be interested in the 405,000,000 shares of the
Company.

3. Mr. Fang was granted option under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to
subscribe for 3,500,000 shares of the Company.

4. 345,000,000 shares are directly held by Delco. Green Elite holds
60,000,000 shares in the Company and is equally owned by HWH and
Delco. Delco is equally owned by SVO Company B.V. (“SVO”) (which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (“Mr. van Qoijen”)) and
H.P.L. Metals B.V. (“HPL”) (which is wholly-owned by Stichting Beheer
Aandelen HPL Metals), a foundation for the sole benefit of Mr. Herman
Maurits de Leeuw. Therefore, Mr. van Ooijen is deemed to have interest
of 405,000,000 shares in the Company.

5. Mr. van Ooijen was granted option under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for 1,000,000 shares of the Company.

6. Mr. Gu Liyong was granted option under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for 425,000 shares of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company or any of their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation as at 31 December 2010.

S E(E)
EENTETHRAEBRARRNE
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HiEm SoR R (48)
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1. BREDRBARTIR-_Z—ZF A
“H=BRANERAREERBREE
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2. 345,000,000/ BT L= LA ([ 54D
& %A ZHWH Holdings Limited([HWH )
B4 ° Green Elite Limited ([ Green Elite |)
#7872 7160,000,0008% 817 » M Green Elite
FIHWH K Delco Participation B.V.([Delco])
L c A A LEWRAEREARRDF]
405,000,0000% % 15 2 #Ez ©

3. HEAREERAFEEABRESBIER
TR R IE AR 2 73,500,000 A0 ©
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5. van Ooijenst AR FEEH X AR E R EARIE
FTEIE R T B AR R 2K 2 §11,000,000% A%

,T/\ o

6. BEBALRBEERDFHEESAEIETE
JER T RE R IB 28 2 B1425,000 % A7) ©
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2010, other than the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO, the following persons had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange:

e E (&)
ETERRNA R R LA RHEER
Befn - HEARD RIESOED K
9=

R-B-TF+-A=+—8  BREKE
% BB 1601 ) B30 15 BT EM B R A
REMARREEREBTHABNBRG &
HARBRRA SN - AT ALRAR FRAA AR
B A RIBCE S R B IR0 EXVEE
2RIHABAAD R HERIES R E
1601336 1EMF BB MRz - KD
ARSI SN Yo

Number of Approximate
shares of the percentage
Company held  of shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest AR R BRAER
£ B ERME RSB Bt
HWH Holdings Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner, interest in 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%
(FF5E1) controlled corporation
BEEEAA  RXEWEE 2 R
Delco Participation B.V. (Note 2) Beneficial owner, interest in 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%
(Mg5E2) controlled corporation
BHEEBAA  RXEWEEZ R
Herman Maurits de Leeuw (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%
(MisEr2) REEHER 2
H.P.L. Metals B.V. (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%
(M¥sE2) REEHERE 2
Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%
Metals (Note 2) REIEHER 2 s
(Kt&E2)
SVO Company B.V. (Note 2) Interest in controlled corporation 405,000,000 (L) 40.50%
(Ftsr2) REEGDER 2
Green Elite Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner 60,000,000 (L) 6.00%

(F7E3) EDBAA

The Letter “L” denotes a long position.

LIFEBREERR -
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and Its Associated Corporation (continued)

Notes:

1. 345,000,000 shares are directly held by HWH Holdings Limited (‘HWH?”)
which is wholly owned by Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”). Green Elite
holds 60,000,000 shares in the Company and is equally owned by HWH
and Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”). Therefore, Mr. Fang is deemed to
have interest in the 405,000,000 shares of the Company.

2. 345,000,000 shares are directly held by Delco. Green Elite holds
60,000,000 shares in the Company and is equally owned by HWH and
Delco. Delco is equally owned by SVO Company B.V. (“SVO”) (which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen (“Mr. van Qoijen”)) and
H.P.L. Metals B.V. (“HPL”) (which is wholly-owned by Stichting Beheer
Aandelen HPL Metals), a foundation for the sole benefit of Mr. Herman
Maurits de Leeuw. Therefore, Mr. van Ooijen is deemed to have interest
of 405,000,000 shares in the Company.

3. 60,000,000 shares are directly held by Green Elite and Green Elite is
equally owned by HWH and Delco.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any party who, as at 31
December 2010, had an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has entered into the deed of non-competition
undertakings dated 24 June 2010 with the controlling shareholders
of the Company, namely, Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Stephanus Maria
van Qoijen, Mr. Herman Maurits de Leeuw, Green Elite Limited,
HWH Holdings Limited, Delco Participation B.V., SVO Company B.V.,
H.P.L. Metals B.V., Stichting Beheer Aandelen H.P.L. Metals have
jointly and severally undertakes, not to compete with the Group.

In March 2011, the Company has received an annual declaration
from each of the controlling shareholders of the Company in respect
of their respective compliance with the non-competition undertakings
since the date of listing of the shares of the Company on 12 July
2010 (the “Listing Date”). The Independent Non-Executive Directors
have reviewed the said undertakings and are of the view that each of
the controlling shareholders of the Company and the Directors has
complied with their respective non-competition undertakings during
the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2010.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

During the period commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December
2010, the company had not redeemed, and neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the shares of
the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholder.

ZRIRRET 5 F R

RAGIRZZE—EFAAZTHBEHEHAR
RIEMAS R T L= A - Stephanus Maria
van Ooijent 4 + Herman Maurits de Leeuw
$t 4+ Green Elite Limited * HWH Holdings
Limited * Delco Participation B.V. * SVO
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Exaws (@

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 12 July 2010. The net proceeds from the Company’s issue of
new shares (after deducting the underwriting commission and listing
expenses) amounted to approximately HK$581.0 million. For the year
ended 31 December 2010, HK$465.2 million of the net proceeds
has been utilized in accordance with the proposed applications
set out in the section headed “Future plans and use of proceeds”
contained in the prospectus of the Listing.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and with the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2010.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Morison Heng resigned as one of the joint auditors of the
Group on 27 September 2010 and Deliotte Touche Tohmatsu
remains as the sole auditor of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by Messrs. Deliotte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Messrs Deliotte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s
auditor is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited
Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 March 2011
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EZNERITHRABRERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Ankong (5 &%), aged 45, is the Executive Director,
chairman and chief executive officer of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong
was appointed as Director of the Group on 15 May 2008. Mr. Fang
serves as a Chairman of Remuneration Committee and member
of the Nomination Committee, Pricing Committee and Monitoring
Committee of the Company and he is also a Director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong is also one of the
founders of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong founded the Group in 1999
and has over 16 years of experience in the business of metallurgy
and metal scrap recycling. Mr. Fang Ankong is primarily responsible
for setting corporate strategy and planning, and overall management
of the Group. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Fang Ankong has
been engaged in the import and trading of metals scrap. From
1995, Mr. Fang Ankong was a shareholder of Tianan Resources,
a company engaged in the importing of metal scrap into China
and recycling of metal scrap, and also participated in the operation
and management of Tianan Resources. Tianan Resources was
deregistered in 2002. Mr. Fang Ankong is a member of the People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Lugjiao District of Taizhou City (&
MAEBRERES).

Mr. Fang Ankong is the younger brother of Ms. Fang Aiping and
elder brother of Mr. Fang Anlin, the Vice-General Manager of Finance
and the Vice-General Manager of Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, respectively. Mr. Fang
Ankong is also the brother-in-law of Mr. Ding Guopei, the Senior
Vice-President of the Group. Mr. Fang Ankong is also the younger
brother of the father-in-law of Mr. Zhu Zhonghui, the manager of the
sales and marketing department of the Group.

Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen, aged 48, is an Executive Director,
Vice President and one of the founders of the Group. He was
appointed as Director of the Group on 15 May 2008. He serves
as a Chairman of Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company and he is also a Director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. van Ooijen is primarily in
charge of corporate strategy and planning with focus on the Group’s
import functions and has over 13 years of experience. Mr. van Ooijen
obtained a diploma in 1985 from Hogere Agrarische Scholen van de
Katholieke Nederlandse Boeren-en Tuindersbond 'S-Hertogenbosch
(Higher Agricultural Schools of the Catholic Dutch Farmers and
Gardeners Union of 'S-Hertogenbosch) in the Netherlands. Mr.
van QOoijen is the sole shareholder and has been appointed as the
director of SVO Company B.V. since 30 September 1993. He was
also the director of Delco Participation B.V. from 2 November 2000
until 23 April 2008.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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Mr. Gu Liyong (BEZ=E), aged 48, is an Executive Director and Vice-
President of the Group. He was appointed as Director of the Group
on 28 August 2008 and he is also a Director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. He is primarily responsible for operational and financial
activities and has over 25 years of experience in the industry. Mr.
Gu graduated from Shanghai University of Technology (/8T %K
&) in 1984 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering and majoring in
steel making from the Department of Metallurgy. He worked at China
Resources Reclamation Corp., East China Co. (R El¥1& B4R A
4\ TIFER /N 7)), a company for recycling and trading ferrous metal
(such as steel and iron) and non-ferrous metal (such as copper,
aluminum, lead and tin) and plastic scrap in the East China region,
for at least 10 years and started his career in the management and
operation of domestic and international recycling business. He was
a manager for the import and export department and an assistant to
general manager in China Resources Reclamation Corp., East China
Co., and was responsible for managing the procurement of metal
scrap from overseas and reselling to their customers. Mr. Gu has
extensive experience in the recycling of different resources, including
metals and other scrap materials. Since he joined the Group in 1999,
Mr. Gu has been responsible for the import and export businesses
of the Group by utilising his professional knowledge in the recycling
resources business.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema, aged 44, is a Non-Executive Director of
the Group. He was appointed as Director of the Group on 28 August
2008 and he is also a Director of Hefast Holding Corporation Limited,
a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Ybema obtained a Master of Business
Law degree from the University of Leiden in the Netherlands in 1990
and gained certification as corporate counsel through the Dutch bar
exam equivalent for in-house counsel in 1993. Mr. Ybema joined
the corporate legal department at Royal Philips Electronics N.V. of
the Netherlands in 1992 and was first assigned to Hong Kong in
May 1995. In 1997, Mr. Ybema joined US-headquartered Global
IT outsourcing giant Computer Sciences Corporation in 1997 as
European Counsel based in the UK and in 2000 returned to Asia
as Counsel for CSC’s Asia Group. Mr. Ybema is co-founder and
immediate past President of the Hong Kong Corporate Counsel
Association. He serves as an independent non-executive Director
on the board of China Resources Microelectronics Ltd. (Stock code:
0597), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and has served
on the Professional Services Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management (continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhang Jingdong (E#(R), aged 65, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Group. She joined the Group on 23
June 2010. Ms. Zhang is also a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. She was the vice-secretary-general of Financial Trust
Association of Zhejiang Province (#T/L%& £ BEFE X E) before
joining our Group and she held various positions in the Chinese
banking and finance sectors including the People’s Bank of China
Heilongjiang Branch (FBAREITEEETEHTT) , Financial
Intermediation Centre of Zhejiang Province (/I & & & &l L),
and office of Hangzhou Financial Supervision of People’s Bank of
China Shanghai Branch (FBI A RER1T EE TN S BE A E).

Ms. Zhang holds a master’s degree in Economic Management (47
&12) from the Academy of Social Sciences of Hei Longjiang (£&E/T
BHEREb).

Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (B£38#K), aged 61, was appointed
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Group on 23 June
2010. Dr. Loke serves as a Chairman of the Audit Committee and
member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Dr. Loke has over 35 years of experience in
accounting and auditing for private and public companies, financial
consultancy and corporate management. He holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from Universiti Teknologi Malaysia
and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from University
of South Australia. He is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants; and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is
also an Associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

He is currently the company secretary of Minth Group Limited and
serves as an independent non-executive director of Vodone Limited,
Matrix Holdings Limited, Bio-Dynamic Group Limited, China Fire
Safety Enterprise Group Limited, Winfair Investment Company
Limited, SCUD Group Limited and Zhong An Real Estate Limited,
companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Li Xikui (Z$85%), aged 66, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He joined the Group on 23 June 2010. Mr. Li
serves as a member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li obtained a
Bachelor’'s degree majoring in foreign trade (¥f4MN& 5 &%) from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (51t B 48 X £2)
(formally known as Liaoning Finance and Economics College (&%
B 42 ZP)) in August 1970 and a master diploma in finance from
Research Institute for Fiscal Science of Ministry of Finance (B4 2884
EREHERFIEFR) in July 1982.

Mr. Li became the Researcher (fff3t &) of China Construction Bank
(P EEERERTT) in 1993. He has been receiving a special allowance
granted by the State Council (B7F5%) since 1992.

Mr. Li was appointed as the vice president of the head office (4217 &l
77E) of China Construction Bank (B2 % 3R1T) in 1985 and 1988;
the vice president (8I4%;) of China Galaxy Securities Company (FF
B8R 7% %2 7). Since February 2006, he has been the chairman of
the board (EE &) of Galaxy Asset Management Co., Ltd ((RAE®
BERA).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wan Hoi Paul (A% 8), aged 55, is the Qualified
Accountant and Chief Financial Officer of the Group. He joined the
Group in June 2009 as chief financial officer with responsibility for
overall financial matters of the Group. Mr. Chow has significant
experience in accounting and finance. He is an associate of both
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He is also a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Chow was formerly a non-executive director of Asia Distribution
Solutions Limited, a company that was previously trading on AIM,
a market operated by the London Stock Exchange plc. (LSE: LSE)
Mr. Chow currently serves as an independent non-executive director
of Associated International Hotels Limited (Stock code: 0105), Tian
Teck Land Limited (Stock code: 0266) and China Ground Source
Energy Limited (Stock code: 8128), companies listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Ding Guopei (T Bl#g), aged 48, is the Senior Vice-President
of the Group, the General Manager and Director of Taizhou Chiho-
Tiande Metals Company Limited and Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Foundry
Company Limited. Mr. Ding has over 12 years of experience in the
industry and joined the Group in December 1999. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a trader principally engaged in the metal recycling
industry. Mr. Ding obtained a diploma majoring in International
Economics and Trade (BB 4CEEE 5 H 5 KEI) from the faculty
of business from Ningbo University (E2)5 K22 ZF5) in 2002.
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Mr. Ding has been chosen as a member of the third session
Standing Committee of Lu Qiao District People’s Congress (B1& &
F=EAKNFZEEZE) since December 2006. He has also been the
chairman of the Association of Resource Comprehensive Utilisation
of Taizhou City (&M E R4S FAHEEK) since June 2005. He
was chosen as the second session outstanding builders of Taizhou
City of the socialism with Chinese characteristics (£ —fg & /I 1E
FhESEHETHEEEELE) and was awarded the Top Ten
Contribution to the China Metal Recycling Industry Award (4 B & 4
TBEETALELERAY) in October 2007. He has also been the
vice-chairman of the Zhejiang Association of Solid Waste Recycle
and Disposal (4T T4 EsEWF AR ETE B IS K) since May
2008. Mr. Ding is the brother-in-law of Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr.
Fang Anlin. Mr. Ding is the husband of Ms. Fang Aiping.

Ms. Fang Aiping (77 2 3¥), aged 48, is the Vice-General Manager
of Finance of Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals Company Limited,
a subsidiary of the Group. She is primarily responsible for the
subsidiary’s overall financial planning, financial reporting and
budgeting as well as implementing our Group’s business strategies.
Ms. Fang Aiping joined our Group since December 1999. Ms.
Fang Aiping has more than 11 years of experience in financial
management. Ms. Fang Aiping is the sister of Mr. Fang Ankong and
Mr. Fang Anlin. She is the wife of Mr. Ding Guopei.

Mr. Fang Anlin (73 & #k), aged 42, is the Vice-General Manager of
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group. He is also a Director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
He is primarily responsible for the production of the subsidiary. Mr.
Fang Anlin joined the Group in December 1999 and has over 16
years of experience in the business of mixed metal scrap. Since Mr.
Fang Anlin joined the Group, Mr. Fang Anlin has been responsible
for overseeing the production of recycled metal products. Mr. Fang
Anlin is the brother of Mr. Fang Ankong and Ms. Fang Aiping. Mr.
Fang Anlin is also the brother in-law of Mr. Ding Guopei.

Mr. Cai Haifeng (2835 1#), aged 39, is the General Manager of Chiho-
Tiande (Ningbo) Metals Recycling Company Limited, a subsidiary of
our Group. Mr. Cai graduated from Zhejiang Polytechnic University (47
7T T2 K2 with a Bachelor’s degree in Fine Chemical Engineering
in 1993. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cai worked for Zhejiang
Dong Da Ji Tuan Company (TR K&EE R F]), a company
whose business involves the import and export agency business,
as an assistant manager in the business development department
responsible for metal scrap import business. He joined the Group in
May 2000.
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Mr. Gan Jun (HE), aged 41, is the assistant to the Chief Executive
Officer and Finance Manager of the Group, and the Chairman of
board of Shanghai Chiho-tiande Recycled Resources Ltd., primarily
responsible for all financial and accounting matters of the Group
and the management of Shanghai Chiho-tiande. Mr. Gan joined
our Group in September 2007 and he is also a Director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He holds a diploma of Accountancy in
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (78 81 48K
£, Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Gan worked as the financial
manager and the assistant to the general manager in Guangdong
Gentle Technology Company Limited (E& EERRERRQA),
an information technology application provider ({5 237 /& F iR
75 7E), for more than a year. Mr. Gan has extensive experience in
the accounting and finance field, and he is also a certified public
accountant and registered tax adviser in China.

Mr. Xu Jialiang (FNR), aged 47, is the manager of the
procurement department of the Group primarily responsible for
procuring raw material supply of the Group. Mr. Xu joined the Group
in December 1999 and was responsible for the procurement of
mixed metal scrap. Mr. Xu has over 10 years of experience in mixed
metal scrap procurement.

Mr. Zhu Zhonghui (5 8¥), aged 32, is the manager of the sales
and marketing department of the Group and is primarily responsible
for the sales management of the Group. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in
December 1999 and was responsible for the selling of recycled metal
products. Mr. Zhu is the son-in-law of the elder brother of Mr. Fang
Ankong.

Mr. Xu Jun (#RB&), aged 33, is the Head of Investor Relations of the
Group and he joined the Group in September 2010 as Vice Head
of Investor Relations, and promoted to Head of Investor Relations
in December 2010. Mr. Xu is graduated from Shanghai Jiaotong
University (_E/83238A£2) with a Bachelor’s degree in Dynamic &
Energy Engineering in 2000. In 2003, he is graduated from New
York Institute of Technology with a Master degree in Business
Administration. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu has worked for
Alcatel Shanghai Bell Limited (/8 B B @ R~EHRAF) as the
Sales & Bid Director of overseas market; the Head of Investment
Banking of Great China for Hongjing Bangxun Information (Shanghai)
Limited (=& FB:AE (L 8)E R A7) and the Executive Director for
Shanghai Jingshun Equity Investment Limited (/8 S B #EEEHR
RAA]).
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

ERELIREMEH

INTRODUCTION

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a
high standard of corporate governance and leading the Group to
attain better results and improve our image with effective corporate
governance procedures.

The shares of the Company commenced trading on the Stock
Exchange on 12 July 2010 (the “Listing Date”). Since listing, the
Company has adopted, applied and complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) except on the deviations set out in the paragraph
headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company have not been segregated as required by the provision
A.2.1 of the Code.

Mr. Fang Ankong is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. With extensive experience in the mixed metal scrap
recycling business, Mr. Fang is responsible for the Group’s overall
strategic planning and the management of our business. The Board
considers that vesting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person is beneficial to the business prospects
and management of the Group. The balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the senior management and the Board,
which comprise experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board
currently comprises three Executive Directors (including Mr. Fang),
one Non-Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors and therefore has a fairly strong independence element in
its composition.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the guidelines
for the Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Upon
specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2010
(the “Relevant Period”) in relation to their securities dealings, if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior
management and relevant employees who likely possesses the non-
public price-sensitive information of the Company.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information (continued)
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THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s business, strategic decisions
and performances and comprises seven Directors, including three
Executive Directors namely Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Stephanus Maria
van Ooijen and Mr. Gu Liyong, one Non-Executive Director namely
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors namely Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui.
The management is delegated with the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the day-to-day operation and management of
the Group under the Board’s instruction. In addition, the Board
has also established various board committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the board committees including the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Pricing Committee and the Monitoring Committee
(together, the “Board Committees”). All the Board Committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms
of reference and further details of these committees are set out
hereunder. During the Relevant Period, one board meeting was
held and all the Directors attended. Meanwhile, subsequent to the
end of Relevant Period and up to the date of this report, two board
meetings were held and all the Directors attended. The Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and the Group’s annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2010 were approved in the
board meetings of the Company.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial,
business, family or other material relationships among members of
the Board.

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years. None of them holds any other offices
in the Company or any of its subsidiaries or is interested in any
shares of the Company. The Company has received from each
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors a confirmation of his
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information (continued)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 June 2010
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee include reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting process and internal control procedures of the Group and
nominating and monitoring external auditors. The Audit Committee
consists of three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Dr. Loke
Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr. Li Xikui and is chaired by Dr. Loke
Yu. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairman
of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate professional and
accounting qualifications.

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee held one meeting in
which all members of the committee attended, to review the results
for the six months ended 30 June 2010 of the Company. Meanwhile,
subsequent to the end of Relevant Period and up to the date of this
report, the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2010 were reviewed by the Audit Committee members before
submission to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 June
2010 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and determining on behalf of the Board specific remuneration
packages and conditions of employment for the Directors and
senior management and evaluating and making recommendations
on employee benefit arrangements. The Remuneration Committee
consists of Mr. Fang Ankong and Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen,
Executive Directors, and Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong and Mr.
Li Xikui, Independent Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by Mr.
Fang Ankong.

During the Relevant Period, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting in which all members of the committee attended, to review
and make recommendation on the Directors’ remuneration of the
Company in 2010. Meanwhile, subsequent to the end of Relevant
Period and up to the date of this report, one meeting was held and
all members of the committee attended. The proposed Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011 were approved by the Remuneration
Committee in the meeting.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information (continued)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23 June
2010 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Nomination
Committee comprises Mr. Stephanus Maria van QOoijen and Mr. Fang
Ankong, Executive Directors, and Dr. Loke Yu, Ms. Zhang Jingdong
and Mr. Li Xikui, Independent Non-Executive Directors and is chaired
by Mr. Stephanus Maria van Qoijen.

As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 12 July 2010,
no Nomination Committee meeting was held during the Relevant
Period.

PRICING COMMITTEE

The Company established the Pricing Committee on 23 June 2010
to review and determine the offer and selling prices of the Group’s
physical stock as well as the Group’s hedging positions requirements
on a daily basis; to enhance the risk management of commodity
price fluctuations and to ensure an effective risk monitoring system.
The Pricing Committee comprises Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Xu Jialiang,
Mr. Zhu Zhonghui, Mr. Gan Jun, Ms. Chan Tung Tung and Mr. Chow
Wan Hoi Paul.

During the Relevant Period, the Pricing Committee held five meetings
in which all members of the committee attended, to review the
monthly report of the previous month and make recommendation to
the Directors on the Company’s pricing and hedging policies.

MONITORING COMMITTEE

The Company established the Monitoring Committee on 23 June
2010 to closely monitor the use of net proceeds of the Global
Offering; to ensure the funds are applied over the timeline specified
and to ensure the purchase of raw materials is for production
usage and not for speculative purposes. The Monitoring Committee
comprises Mr. Fang Ankong, Mr. Gu Liyong, Ms. Chan Tung Tung
and Mr. Chow Wan Hoi Paul.

During the Relevant Period, the Monitoring Committee held two
meetings in which all members of the committee attended, to
monitor the use of net proceeds of the Global Offering and report to
the Directors and Audit Committees.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the reporting period, the remunerations paid or payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and Morison Heng in respect of its audit
services and non-audit services are as follows:

Audit services % IR
Non-audit services FEEAZ AR

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010 which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
results and cash flow for that year. The Directors consider that
the financial statements have been prepared in conformity with all
appropriate accounting standards and requirements and reflect
amounts that are based on the best estimates and reasonable,
informed and prudent judgment of the Board and the management.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on
a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 46 of
this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the maintenance
of an effective internal control system. The Company leverages
on the expertise offered by internal and external professionals to
develop its internal control system which includes a well etablished
corporate structure and an organization with clearly defined lines of
responsibility and authority.

In addition to the annual internal control review performed by the
Internal Control department (the “Internal Control Department”) of
the Company, the Company has engaged Yuehua CPA Limited to
conduct an assessment on the effectiveness of the internal control of
the Group for the Listing in 2010. The result of the assessment was
positive.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information (continued)
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INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The internal control are reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis
by the Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed
at least once each year by the Board.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The management of the Company believes that effective and
proper investor relations play a vital role in creating shareholders’
value, enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing
market confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent
internal control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and
timely disclosure of relevant information pursuant to requirements
of relevant laws and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders
equal access to information. To strive for effective communication
and transparency of the Company, the personnel in charge have
frequent contacts with the shareholders and investors through
various channels such as interview, internet, telephone and email.

Since the Listing, the personnel in charge have communicated
with several current institutional investors. Several visits to the
Company have been arranged. The personnel in charge also have
communicated with several potential institutional investors from
Hong Kong and overseas and several analysts. Several visits to the
Company have been arranged for fund managers and analysts.
Through these activities the investors have known more about the
Company’s development, which leads to a positive effect. The
Company has also introduced its development strategy and recent
business development to the investors in large investment forums.

The Company endeavors to create opportunities for investment
and communication and to provide the latest development of the
Company as well as information of the mixed metal scrap recycling
industry to the market. As such, investors’ understanding of and
confidence in the Company can be enhanced.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports
and announcements to the public in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations. Our primary focus is to ensure information
disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby
enabling shareholders, investors as well as the public, to make
rational and informed decisions.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORVR S

Deloitte.
=3

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHIHO-TIANDE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiho-
Tiande Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 127,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2010, and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

11 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEZEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z —Z2—ZTF+_F=+—H I FE

2010 2009
—EB-ZF —ETNEF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEE FET FET
Revenue g 7 5,931,589 2,339,243
Cost of sales SHERAR 8 (5,361,645) (1,784,806)
Gross profit EF 569,944 554,437
Other income HABA 9 11,548 5,711
Other gains and losses H AU es KB 10 55,001 98,200
Distribution and selling expenses DN HE X (12,805) (1,757)
Administrative expenses THAX (74,217) (34,917)
Other expenses HEmAx (24,849) (5,657)
Finance costs 2D %N 11 (42,588) (28,823)
Profit before tax MR B AT A 12 482,034 587,194
Income tax expense FriSHiR > 14 (129,478) (167,540)
Profit for the year F R 352,556 419,654
Other comprehensive income Hit2mEUWA
Exchange difference arising on BHERE2REBEEN
translation to presentation currency & X Z=%a 33,954 3,481
Total comprehensive income for FAREEURA LR
the year 386,510 423,135
Profit for the year attributable to: A& A IS FERaF
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ =N 352,798 419,654
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR S (242) -
352,556 419,654
Total comprehensive income forthe AN & T ELEFRNZEWA -
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARER A 386,455 423,135
Non-controlling interests FEIE R AE R 55 -
386,510 423,135
HK$ HK$
BT T
Earnings per share GRZEF
— basic —HAR 16 0.41 0.56
— diluted -85 16 0.41 0.56

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Annual Report 2010




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBRRER

At 31 December 2010 A=—ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNEF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’'000
5T TExT FHET
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NG 17 203,735 135,284
Prepaid lease payments ENES 18 36,435 35,962
Deposits paid for acquisition WEEYIZ - B AR FT T
of property, plant and equipment e 7,587 4,150
247,757 175,396
Current assets RBEE
Inventories w8 19 2,303,425 1,167,437
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEN RIS 21 411,647 188,826
Bills receivables FEUNZEE 22 14,629 1,365
Prepaid lease payments TEREE 18 890 858
Amount due from a related party FELULREE 5 IE 23 - 371
Derivative financial instruments TEEmMITA 24 - 1,072
Pledged bank deposits EHEMIRITIFR 25 351,684 241,440
Restricted bank deposits PRSI RITIF 25 - 5,535
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR MRS 25 251,335 69,428
3,333,610 1,676,332
Current liabilities REIBEE
Trade and other payables g 5 REMER IR 26 188,237 136,605
Bills payables e I 27 149,150 114,126
Amount due to non-controlling FE SRV AR M 2R R
interests 20 23,976 -
Amounts due to related parties B REE 5 208 23 - 93,205
Derivative financial instruments TTESRT A 24 205 1,603
Tax payable FERITRIR 50,747 44,119
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 1,496,672 799,046
1,908,987 1,188,704
Net current assets REBEEZE 1,424,623 487,628
Total assets less current liabilities BEMRERRSEE 1,672,380 663,024




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

REMBERR R (H)

At 31 December 2010 R = E—FF+-A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-2F —EThF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$ 000
FiEE FE T FET
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital &N 30 10,000 -
Share premium and reserves f& 0 (B M 1,601,801 418,098
Equity attributable to owner NARER AEEREE
of the Company 1,611,801 418,098
Non-controlling interests FEERRME 2 20 34,880 -
Total equity BRELS 1,646,681 418,098
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE R 29 25,699 21,218
Amounts due to related parties FEATREE 18 23 - 223,708
25,699 244,926
1,672,380 663,024

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 127 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 11
March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Fang Ankong
DIRECTOR

Mr. Gu Liyong
DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RoEREEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE —Z—ZF+ - A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AAAREREARE
Foreign Attributable
Share Statutory ~ Enterprise  currency  Accumulated tonon-
Share Share option Capital general  expansion translation (losses) controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits ~ Sub-total interest Total
i HE % e gt FER

ks RiEE i ESEE  -RBE  BREE  ENGR BB Mt REEE a3t

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS0O0  HKSO000  HKSO000

TEr AT AL TR TER  TER TR TR TEn TR TEn
(note ) (note )

(osk) (Kt

At 1 January 2009 (note ) RZZENE-R-R

(M) - - - 6552 1444 1444 39180 (19558 (5090) - (5,087)
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - - 419654 419,654 - 419654
Exchange difference arising BENEREREL

ontrangiation fo presentaton B £8

currency - - - - - - 3481 - 3481 - 3481
Total comprehensive income ER2ERAEE

for the year - - - - - - 3481 419,654 423,135 - 423135
Transfer of reserves fEEER - - - - 17722 17722 - (35,444) - - -
At 31 December 2009 RZZENFTZA=T-R - - - 6,052 32,136 32,136 42,620 304,654 418,098 - 418,098
Profit for the year ERF) - - - - - - - 32798 352798 (249 352556
Bxchange diference aisngon ~ AER EREHELH

tranglation to presentation EREE

currency - - - - - - 33,657 - 33,657 207 33,954
Totel comprehensieincome ~ ERZEUAEE

for the year - - - - - - 38,657 362,798 386,455 5 386,510
Transfer of reserves EEER - - - - 35,487 35,487 - (70974) - - -
Capitaisation of sharcholders: IR EA MY (K

loans (note i - - - 203,708 - - - - 203,708 - 203,708
Capitalisation issue (note ) BRI () 7500 - - 7.500) - - - - - - -
Issue of new shares EAHR(H30(H )

Note 30 e ] 250 60500 - - - - - - a7 - a7
Cost of issue of new shares BIHRAEA - (26460 - - - - - - (26400 - (26400
Capital contribution fromnon-~ FEERIER T E

controling interests - - - - - - - - - 34,825 34,825
Recogniion of equity-settled  EBNREEERNERA

share-based payments Bt VANE - - 2,500 - - - - - 2500 - 2500
At 31 December 2010 RZE-2F+-A=1-A 10,000 578,540 2,500 222,760 67,623 67,623 76,217 586478 1,611,801 34880 1,646,081

EARMEEARITE F 2010




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
HEERBER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

notes: P%E

() The capital reserve at 1 January 2009 represents the difference between () —ZZNF— B —HWEXRRFH EA R AR
the nominal value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of T N\ FEESEARFTINEENE A RIRA
the subsidiaries acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation RIS S (8 4858 2 T {E B AR N B IR AE AT
in 2008 and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in BTN 2 EERESE ©
exchange.

(i) Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the (i) ZAAF P ZEARLMBE([HE )BT
appropriation of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant EEERMARETE - ARBEPEEBAETR
accounting rules and regulations of the People’s Republic of China (the A EHE T BB SAN10% B AETE —
“PRC”) as required by the Articles of Association of the Company’s PRC MBEMNCEBRRES - MEF—REBENI
subsidiaries. The appropriation may cease to apply if the balance of the PEBRESHBEPEMMB AR FMER
statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund has reached #150% » I RT 42 5 -

50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.

(i) On 12 July 2010, an amount of HK$111,854,000 due to each of Mr. (i) R—ZE—ZFF+A+-H  KQFMER

Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) and Delco Asia Company Limited (“Delco Al RlEE R &= e ([ 75 5% 4% 1) KDelco
Asia”) by subsidiaries of the Company was assigned to the Company. Asia Company Limited ( [ Delco Asia | ) #Y
Upon completion of the assignment, the Company capitalised the same 111,854,000/ 0 B I E AR A F] o RITh
amount as reserve. Bitg - ARRBHERSEE MM ARFHEE -

(iv) Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of the Company  (v) IRIEBEAQAFTKRER —=—ZF A -+=H
on 23 June 2010, 344,999,954, 344,999,954 and 59,999,992 shares BN EERESRE  RIE—ZTF+EA+=
were issued and alloted to HWH Holding Limited, Delco Participation B.V. B B&%FE#ED B HHWH Holding Limited
and Green Elite, respectively (being a total of 749,999,900 shares) on 12 Delco Participation B.V. & Green Elite % 17
July 2010, credited as fully paid up at par out of the reserve, such shares X B 3% 344,999,954 i% ~ 344,999,954 % &
ranked pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares. 59,999,092 IR IR EE ARV BHUE IR GK (&

749,000,900 17D) * ZERMES @
HERIEARG =B REEN -

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Annual Report 2010




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
malaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & —Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIIFE

2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNEF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
B sE FET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESTE
Profit before tax PR RT3 482,034 587,194
Adjustments for: HTYEIE 7%
Net foreign exchange (gains) losses [ 4, (Uizs ) 518 F 28 (28,498) 585
Finance costs B TSR AR 42,588 28,823
Depreciation of property, Y - BB RERETE
plant and equipment 12,103 7,642
Share-based payment expense ARG BERN R Z B 2,500 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease SEXN ek i
payments 867 859
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BEKEEN
plant and equipment &8 58 16
Interest income FLEWA (6,583) (2,415)
Reversal of impairment loss B 5 N E b U GRIERETR A
recognised on trade and other BRI
receivables (560) -
Reversal of allowance for inventories 17 & & &7 [l = (308,613)
Operating cash flows before EEECEHAINLEERS
movements in working capital mE 504,509 314,091
Increase in inventories FEEN (1,074,907) (288,665)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K E b & Yk TEIE N (212,754) (28,570)
(Increase) decrease in bills receivables & U =45 (15 11 ) & 2> (13,212) 1,636
Increase in derivative financial PTHES RN T B
instruments (346) (17,198)
Increase in trade and other payables 28 5 & o fib i < 2k IE 12 1N 40,996 41,993
Increase in bills payables FETRARIE N 30,700 22,477
Increase in amount due to JE AT 2R AR M 2 SR IR IE AN
non-controlling interest 23,976 -
Cash (used in) from operations (A BRE (701,038) 45,764
Tax paid ENHIE (120,923) (23,305)
Interest paid BEARFE (38,134) (27,211)
Tax refunded BH = 44,971
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM ReETEE (A FBRS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FE (860,095) 40,219
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEE
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IRERI T 1 (101,097) (225,138)
Purchase of and deposit paid for BEME  WMEREEAR
property, plant and equipment B ES (77,853) (12,049)
Advance to related parties M BEE 5 1 = (58)
Interest received BYFIE 5,407 2,415
Decrease in restricted bank deposits 5B #lI$R 1T 1F 20 2> 5,745 14,969
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BE — IR /B A A) 37 3,982 -
Proceeds from sales of property, HEWE - BEMRES
plant and equipment FRIE 437 135
Repayment from related parties BEHER 371 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETBMARSFRE

ACTIVITIES

(163,008)

(219,726)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

FERERBR(A)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNEF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$ 000
B sE FHET FAT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B EE
New bank and other borrowings raised #11gR17 R EMEE 4,117,631 1,926,440
Issue of share capital BT 607,500 -
Increase in fundings from JEIE R E 1 ALE I
non-controlling interests 34,825 -
Repayment of bank and other ERIRITTREMESR
borrowings (8,425,196) (1,625,354)
Repayment to related parties MEAETER (105,920) (96,352)
Expense on issue of new shares BATHR AR (26,460) -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING METBREBREFHE
ACTIVITIES 1,202,380 204,734
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH & R € ZE1E 5 FE &M
EQUIVALENTS 179,277 25,227
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT £¥R4& R RS ZEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 69,428 44174
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE /NEERS BN L
RATE CHANGES 2,630 27
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT AR SRR ZHIER
END OF THE YEAR
represented by bank balances (FER1THEBRIRS)
and cash 251,335 69,428




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & —Z—ZF+ - A =+—HIIFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The shares of the Company
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) with effect from 12 July 2010. The Company’s
registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its main
place of business is located at Taizhou Industrial Zone of Metal
Recycling Fengjiang, Luqgiao, Taizhou, Zhejiang, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 40.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is
Renminbi (“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience of the
shareholders as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) have been applied by the Group in the current year. The
impact of the application of the new and revised Standards and
Interpretations is discussed below.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part

of Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Eligible Hedged Items

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

Business Combinations

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners
HK-Int5 Presentation of Financial Statements

- classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

1.—RER
AARRIBEFESRSAFAENHASFS M
RSz Rt BB R BR AR o ANA RN
R_B—ZFE+A+_BRNEBHMEX S
ERAT([BEAZFT]) £ o A"AF 251
% = &2 i1 7 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands & & = Z &  ith B v A R 5
ARLFE([HRE])INTIEaMmEEBRE
THEAMNEBEETERR

RABEREER AR - EBARNEES
ETEH R MIFE40 o

ARAREMBARMINGEEE /SARE
(TAR®]) - ARARBEZTELT &
FEER  SEMBHRRAET(TET])

251 e

2. BT ERMBRE
ZA([EBMBREER )

RAFE - AEBECERIATHEE ST
NE([EEGMAE ) EMZH] R&E
FIERI MR o TR mERFE] REERT
B RBRBZTE -

BEMBREE(BITA)  (ERU-_FTT\FERY
BREEA 2 HE L~
BUERNBREE
AIESSHIELERT

FRHBREER H-ZENFRRUBR
CHES) Rz E

BAGIIERISTHR
(ZZTN\FEER)

e RBUMBRE

FREHEAER(ETAR) AEREMAR

ERHBREERELR SRNA S HEERARD
CHES) RERNF RS

BANHREEAENR FHAH

(ZZTN\FEEH)

Eh(ERIHRERE AREANEFREEE
ZEE)-REBETH

R -RERsH MBRRZ2H-BERA
HEAREKERGR
ZEHET AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group applies HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2010. The requirements in HKAS 27
(Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements in relation
to accounting for changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary after
control is obtained and for loss of control of a subsidiary are also
applied prospectively by the Group on or after 1 January 2010.

As the transaction during the current year in which HKFRS 3 (Revised)
is applicable is not significant and there is no change in ownership
interest in subsidiaries in which HKAS 27 (Revised) is applicable, the
directors of the Company consider that the application of HKFRS 3
(Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and the consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

Results of the Group in future periods may be affected by future
transactions for which HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and
the consequential amendments to the other HKFRSs are applicable.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause” (“HK Int 5”) clarifies that term loans
that include a clause that gives the lender the unconditional right to
call the loans at any time (“repayment on demand clause”) should
be classified by the borrower as current liabilities. The Group has
applied HK Int 5 for the first time in the current year. HK Int 5 requires
retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK Int 5, the
Group has changed its accounting policy on classification of
term loans with a repayment on demand clause. In the past, the
classification of such term loans were determined based on the
agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
Under HK Int 5, term loans with a repayment on demand clause are
classified as current liabilities.

2. BERERMBHREER ()

AEERWBBEEHRA-_T—TF—A—Axk
ZIRMEFE HHEF AR BV RS £R
FIF|RIERT XA - AEBETR-F
—ZE-A-HRZRIEFEAEBGHE
AISE275R (RUERD A e RIB A KA T H
FAEVSIEHIER — B AR EE kD
KB AR TG AE
RPN StRE T ANRE

AR E B M IR EERIEIR (RIEFT)EM
MARFRNRZAENEA MR BERLETLES
PERIFE275R (ER] ) @R B AR H#E
BEDEE  ARBESERR  BATEY
BaEERFEIREERT) - BA G LR
275 (BIERT) R R BB R E LR
RERET T EHASER BATSBE S
HIFEMNGE M RRENEATE -

AEER AR KA R B FETH
WEENEIREER) BEGTERSE
275 (RIER]) R EME BT R & AR
JRERTDERM AR HAFE -

FERERSHI MBEHRER 2 2H—ERA
HHARBRERGRZEHER 2
(IBERBEST D HAERARKESR
THGRA BRI HERN ] BERS ZREEE T
FER((REREEGR]D ZERERDER
RBAE - AEECNAFEEREREE
REELT - BEREFESRAEHER -

RNABLREESTRAHIRE  AKHE
EEFTAMAGRERERGNZERER
DRZGFBER - BEABTEHENR 2D
TIIRBENER B R ZEREER B PE
E o IRBEEBRERESN - AARERER
R ERERIDBER/RBEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

As at 31 December 2010, bills payables with a repayment on
demand clause are included in current liabilities. Bills payables with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on demand or
less than 1 month” time band in the liquidity and interest risk tables.
Details of which are set out in the Note 6b. The directors of the
Company consider that the application of HK Int 5 had no impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the current or
prior accounting periods.

The application of the other new and revised HKFRSs had no effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the current
or prior accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010 except for the amendments
to HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008),

HKAS 1 and HKAS 28"

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters?

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters®

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets®

Financial Instruments*

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets®

Related Party Disclosures®

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues”

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
(Amendments) Requirement®
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments?

2. BERERMBHREER ()
RZE-—Z2F+-A=+—0 BAREX
EEGRZENEBRFARDRAE - A
;z/féiaﬂ RZENEBET AR E S MF
R R R ERE—EA N R EEE
A - BRAFFBEEHNIHE6D - AAREERR
EREEREESR IS HAEEN B ATk
BEESTHENGAMBERRERTE -

JE R EAL AT A IERT BB M IR E LR
SHAKERE HUT@ SETHRGA A
BMRERTE

AREBIRIBFRALATERMIE R ARER
BVETR] RAERT R 2 g

ERHBREER H-Z-TEREMBRER
CHEN) Al BAGHEANRIRRE

318315268 2 BB
FERHASEASIRY
BB (Z22/\FEE
ok

BAMBREEAE IR BEARMAT BN BREER

CHEN) FTRBENHLBENZER
RaR?
EANBREEAE IR BERBRRIGERERE
CHES) KEE A
ERYBRERAETS HE-ERLRER
CHEY)
BAMBHEENFOR SMIA
BEGHEAF12%  BENR  WOEEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1
January 2011, as appropriate.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in
November 2010) adds requirements for financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

e Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods.

e |n relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates to
financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
presentation of the effects of changes in the liability's credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Currently, under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss was presented in
profit or loss.

2. BERERMBHREER ()

T RZE-ZFtLtABR=ZTE——F—A—
Hel 2 &FaFEBRMER - ER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for financial year ending 31
December 2013 and that the application of the new Standard may
have impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will
have no material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
consideration given to exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

2. ERBERBYBREER(F)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. Prior to 1 January 2010, losses applicable to the
non-controlling interests in excess of the non-controlling interests
in the subsidiary's equity were allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the non-controlling interests had a
binding obligation and were able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.

Business combinations that took place on or after 1
January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition
date, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
transactions of the acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree's
share-based payment transactions with share-based payment
transaction of the Group are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations that took place on or after 1
January 2010 (continued)

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the following
conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Specifically, revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and legal title is passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes other than properties under construction, are
stated in the consolidated financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than property under
construction, less their residual value over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset is determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Prepaid lease payments

Payments for obtaining land use rights are accounted for as prepaid
lease payments and are stated at cost and amortised on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Prepaid lease payments which are
to be amortised in the next twelve months or less are classified as
current assets.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and cost necessary to make the
sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments, other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At the end of reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
bills receivables, amount due from a related party, pledged bank
deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial assets classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are derivatives that are not designated and
effective as hedging instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the other gains and losses line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment
have been affected.

For loans and receivables, an objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

Financial assets such as trade receivables that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the respective credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit and loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instrument
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instrument issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are derivatives that are not designated
and effective as hedging instruments.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instrument (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bills
payables, amount due to non-controlling interests, amounts due to
related parties and bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives not designated and effective as hedging instruments are
initially recognised at fair value at the date when a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair values
at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts
it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g.
when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset or retains a residual interest that does not result in the retention
of substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group
retains control), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of
the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the
part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or
loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over
the useful lives of the related assets. Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. The aggregate
benefits of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as "prepaid lease payments" in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted by the Company to employees of the
Group in an equity-settled share-based payment arrangement

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 £ —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 £ —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of Group's entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the translation
reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
period.

Provision for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on a
category-by-category basis at the end of reporting period, and
assesses whether the cost of the finished products will exceed
their net realisable value. Management estimates the net realisable
value for such inventories based primarily on the latest resale value
and quoted prices on applicable commodity exchanges. If the
market price of inventories are to decline, additional provision may
be required. All the Group’s inventories were stated at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the end of reporting
period.

5. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remained unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. The directors of the Company also balance the overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the year ended 31 December 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS irﬂﬂil
6a. Categories of financial instruments L& v‘?ﬂlﬁﬂ’]ﬁ* g
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets EHEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESBIA - 1,072
Loans and receivables (including cash B & EKZIE(BFRE &
and cash equivalents) BEZEIER) 741,635 387,925
Financial liabilities cEas
Derivative financial instruments PTESMITA 205 1,603
Amortised cost B SRR K 1,819,588 1,345,702

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bills receivables, amounts due from (to) related parties,
derivative financial instruments, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, bills payables, amount
due to non-controlling interests and bank borrowings. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group has foreign currency sales, purchases, trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, bills payables, bank borrowings
and derivative financial liability, which expose the Group to
market risk arising from changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management closely monitors its foreign currency
risk exposure and enters into foreign currency forward contracts
should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. R TR (&)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies  6b. & BiE K &2 B & RS (4)
(continued)

Market risk (continued) TG E (&)
(i) Currency risk (continued) () B (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets, monetary NESHRPLEH » REBAET([E
liabilities and derivative financial liability denominated in United T EETT(TBT D sHENEEEE -
States Dollars (“USD”) and Euro (“EUR”) at the end of the EMBELTAESHEBENEREND
reporting period are as follows: T
2010 2009
—E-BF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET
Monetary assets BEREE
usD ET 48,401 68,294
EUR BT 43,087 435
Monetary liabilities ExaE
UsD E7T 980,743 945,557
EUR BT 36,716 1,241
Derivative financial liability TTESREE
usD ETT 205 1,603
Sensitivity analysis BURRE DT
The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currencies of USD REBEFZEAREZTEBRTIIEABEEE
and EUR when such currencies are different from the functional EREMNNGEEEmMEYZEEENRER -

currency of the relevant group entities.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Annual Report 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SR T E (&)
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies  6b. & BiE K &2 B & RS (4)
(continued)

Market risk (continued) TG E (&)
(i) Currency risk (continued) () ErEk(E)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

A 5% sensitivity rate is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel because it represents
management’s assessment of the possible change in USD
and EUR against RMB rate. On the basis of the above assets
and liabilities denominated in USD and EUR at the end of
the reporting period, and assuming all other variables remain
unchanged, a 5% weakening of the USD and strengthening of
EUR against RMB would give rise to fluctuations in post-tax profit
for the year in the following magnitude, and vice versa:

BREEDHT (E)
RAABESREITHRA B 2HRINE R
R E SR BURRE LR - THAZELER
REBEAMAGELRBTLARKE
KO HIRREBIL R - ER FHR 2
BPEEAUELRBLAHENEER
BE BEREMEENE - BIETREA
R EREITHARBEAE 5%
FANEERBREEFEBNBBENAT
RZ TR

2010 2009
—E-EF ZTThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
Increase (decrease) in profit: SEAIEANCRA)
Monetary assets and liabilities EREERAERE
USD weakening against RMB ETHARBRE 36,398 33,679
EUR strengthening against RMB BT H AREHE 266 (34)
Derivative financial liability TTESREE
USD weakening against RMB ETHRARBEE 9 60

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not EIEERA @ BN FLRERELRMEERNE
necessarily representative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as [ - M2 SURE 9T I K XK B B YME R
LA

the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the g8 o
year.

Other than USD and EUR, the Group does not have any other BETREITIN - AEEBTE@MEHMEE
major exposure to foreign currency risk. HNEE [&| g o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank deposits,
variable-rate bank borrowings, bills payables and amounts due to
related parties.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and bank borrowings. It is the
Group’s policy to maintain a majority of borrowings at fixed rate
of interest so as to reduce the cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate hedging
contracts or any other interest rate related derivative financial
instrument. However, management monitors the Group’s
related interest rate exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure when the need arises.

6 TETE(E)
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Sensitivity analysis BURRE DT
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary liabilities which MRERELEE R « 197 BF R BEHAN
carried variable interest rates at the end of the reporting period EEEKaERmENT
were as follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Liabilities am - 314,820

The sensitivity analysis below determined based on the exposure
to risk of interest rate changes for variable-rate bank borrowings,
bills payables and amounts due to related parties at the end
of the reporting period and management considered that such
exposure for variable-rate bank deposits was minimal as the
amount involved was not significant.

A 100 basis points increase or decrease was used when
reporting interest risk internally to key management personnel
because it represented management’s assessment of the
possible change in interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ —E—ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year would be decreased/increased by the following
magnitude:

6%@1&(%)
b. £RIEAMREIE B RERBR(E)

Hi5 R (&)

(i) FIEmEpE (&)
GURE DT (&)
WA 00 R A 100EE 2w AT H
b BB - RIS E F R & % T
A EMEEET

2010 2009

—B-2F —ETNF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FBT FAET

Decrease/increase in profit s A AN - 2,492

(i) Other price risk
The Group was exposed to price risk through its investment in
aluminium future contracts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyse below determined based on the exposure
to price risk of aluminium at the end of reporting period. If
the quote price of the aluminium had been 5% higher/lower,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would be increased/
decreased by the following magnitude:

(i) E A ETEE R
AEBERKRERMESOMELERR

K%

BRE DT

THIBRESMDHERS2HRBEER
RERBRERTE o A RE LT
TF£5% - AIZS SR B F ARR A 1% i F1I4E 0

SRAOKIRENT
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHET

Increase/decrease in profit SR, R

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not
necessarily representative of the inherent other price risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

= 1,077
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with good reputations.

There was no significant concentration of credit risk as the Group’s
financial assets spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.

Liquidity risk

The objective of the Group is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of bank
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end
of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table detailed the Group’s liquidity analysis
for its derivative financial instruments. The table was drawn up
based on the undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows on those
derivatives that required gross settlement. The liquidity analysis for
the Group’s derivative financial instruments were prepared based
on the contractual maturities as the management considered that
the contractual maturities were essential for an understanding of the
timing of the cash flows of derivatives.

6. €@ T A (&)
6b. & @R EE B R RBR(E)

FERR

R-Z-ZF+-_A=+—R AEERAX
S EEETEEMEERR XM EERN&
NEERBRRE AREMBEIRRE 2518
RCEREMEEREE -

SREEERR AEEEEEZX -—BEH
FEBREHRPAEE R Z IR EIFRIE - HER
SR R IR R T R R E R R o
It ARREERRAEE 2 EERBBAE
PEIK -

BN BEEBREFZRIT
ZIEERBRBR

BREBHEER

AR AREMBEEEDBRNRERH T RE
P ByEEAEREERR -

RBESER
AEENERARFHERE  BHEAR
TEEZ T -

TRAVNAEBSITESRABNRGREH
FH - SIRBRAKEAEENRNRT B
HHIFFITESREBEERMRADRE - HH
ERERTE AR TRBAREZHRPEE
B AR ARETE -

AN TREAJIAEEITES R T EMRE
BentT  BRABREGEENITET AR
FRBOEAB)MRHE - HRNEEERA
BHRFHHERTATARSRENRHEE
WHEZ  HASBETLESRTANRDES
DI DHERNEHFH MRS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE - Z—ZF+ - A=+—HIIEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. £FT E () B
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. £ BEMEIE B IZ MBS (&)
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) e (E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables B E 2 RFEE g Z 1

At 31 December 2010 2 e
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEfT4E4RMEARE
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE
Bills payables [ENZE

- non-interest bearing ~NiE

—fixed rate -ER
Bank borrowings RITEE

- fixed rate —E&
Derivatives gross settlement TEIASEAE
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ JMEEEIS 4)

- inflow —RA

- outflow — it

SARMEBBR AR ik 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

6. €M T A (&)

RBE R (E)
R E T R ERRA S ()

6b. TRIEMREIE B ENBER(E)

Total carrying
value at the
Weighted  On demand Total  endofthe
average  or less than 1-3 3 months Over undiscounted ~ reporting
interest rate 1 month months  to 1 year 1year cashflows period
285
miE RERH =faA KBRE  HEAZ
TEfE  —@EANA —Z=fEA =5 —#HE  RELE  RELE
%  HK§000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$'000
% FET FET it FHT TEL it
At 31 December 2009 —EENE+-A=1-R
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 & BB &
Trade and other payables ZHREMENFE - 78,835 27,105 9,677 - 115617 115617
Bills payables ERRE
- variable rate —28 2.44 8,556 58 14,637 - 23,251 23,118
- non-interest bearing —F5tE - 22,752 45,504 22,752 - 91,008 91,008
Amounts due to related parties  ER BB
- variable rate interest bearing —28 1.25 26,651 230 1,056 111,854 139,791 138,376
- non-interest bearing —TirE - 66,683 - - 111854 178537 178537
Bank borrowings RITRE
- fixed rate -EE 358 180,268 123287 324,365 - 627,920 622,602
- variable rate -%8 1.69 16,014 418 161,586 - 178,018 176,444
399,759 196,602 534,073 223,708 1,354,142 1,345,702
Derivatives - gross settlement T4 TR -£HAE
Foreign currency forward contracts SM&RHIA 4]
~inflow —mA - - (4725) (152,091 - (156816)  (156,816)
- outflow — i - - 4,750 163,669 - 158419 158,419
- 25 1,578 - 1,603 1,603
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Bills payables with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2010, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bills payables amounted
to HK$101,922,000. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bills payables will be
repaid within one year after the reporting date in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the facility letter. At that time,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$103,178,000.

6c. Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group
were determined as follows:

e the fair value of derivative financial instruments traded on active
markets were determined with reference to quoted market
prices; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
were determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market transactions as input.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial
position

The following table provided an analysis of financial instruments
that were measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 2 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.

e Level 1 fair value measurements were those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or
liabilities.

e |evel 2 fair value measurements were those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
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ZARBRIRAN S 42%81£ 101,922,000/ 7T © &
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TR B TTIE EESKBNRE R 2 BVIEHE - &

B2HE  ZERNERBERBREAHE—F
RAR & B 3 s Wﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ%%i°?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ —E—ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. M T A(E)

6c. Fair value (continued) 6c. AFEE)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial REIBRRAREANAEETE(E)
position (continued)

As at 31 December 2010 N-—ZE—ZFE+-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
— & —& st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET

Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFEFABZNSREE

Derivative financial liability THESRIEE = 205 205

As at 31 December 2009 R-BEAF+=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
— & % “BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
T FHET FHET

Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABENEREE

Derivative financial asset PTEEMEE 1,072 - 1,072

Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEFAEBENEHAE
Derivative financial liability PTESBAE - 1,603 1,603

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year #HZE-_Z—ZFF+_-A=+—HItFENF
ended 31 December 2010, nor during the year ended 31 December ZFE_ETHE+_—_A=+—HILFE  —4
2009. B — 4% 2 R e o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue represents the amount received and receivable
for the sales of metal scrap, net of sales related taxes, during the
year.

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. The
executive directors of the Company are identified as the CODM
and they regularly review the internal report on gross profit derived
from different business activities and different products to assess
performance and allocate resources of the Group.

The Group is mainly engaged in the principal business of metal
recycling, involving the recycling of mixed metal scrap into copper
scrap, steel scrap, aluminium scrap, iron scrap and other metal
scrap. The Group is also engaged in the foundry business which
involves the production and sale of aluminium-alloy ingots and
copper rod and wire, and wholesales business which involves trading
of other metal scrap without processing. The operating segments
are classified into three categories of business activities:

(i) metal recycling business;

(i) foundry business; and

(i) wholesales business.

7. WERDTHER
AEERFIEENNEFSBE Y B KR ER
HUE - MBS EEERE -

EBoEnE s B EREFEEEREE ([
BRE ) EHEMNABARBEBEEAD
FLEAE MEHE D BRBM AR RS EE—
B ARFHITEFRILERHAL &
HEHNEANSEXG D RERERMEE
MEOABHRSE  FHAREXELDEE
R o

AEETZUECBBLERD - PREREA
BB O Y D A RE SR - RESN - RESR - BRI
HibEEE - IMeFEF REERHEERIE -
RN R ESEEFER SN EFEMBA
MIESBSHERS - AREXBDEE
DRZEEBERDY

() EEBERS:

(i) BEER &

(i) HEEEZETS o

EARMEEARQTE F 2010

83




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FE M RRMTE(R)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE - Z—ZF+ - A=+—HIIEE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. xR OIPEE (E)
(continued)

Segment revenues and segment results DB Es R DB EAE
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment revenues and AT AREEIZA 2RO IPEID T 2HRH
segment results by reportable segment is as below. FRUS S N D BREEAE AT o
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE-S-EF+-A=+—HIEE
Wholesales
Metal recycling business Foundry business ~ business
SRELER BEXY HEER
Other
Other Copper metal scrap
Copper Steel  Aluminium metal Aluminium- rodand  without
scrap scrap scrap Iron scrap scrap alloy ingots wire processing Elimination ~ Total
Bt
B #ER AN

B B B BE  BER i g BER baf Eh
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$000 HKH000 HK$000 HKH000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Téx THnr TEx Tz TEr TEx FEr TEx Tz TER

REVENUE Wi

External sales SN
Inter-segment sales AHEHE
Total segment revenue HHkESE
Segment profi A

Other income HA

Other gains and losses EthERER
Distrioution and selling expenses A 34RHERT
Administrative expenses i

Other expenses 2R
Finance costs BIRRA
Profit before tax BRAIER
Income tax expense FERET
Prof for the year EMET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. xR %
(continued)

=
Mt
®
i

Segment revenues and segment results (continued) DEEm R DB EE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-_EENF+-_BA=+—HIEE
Wholesales
Metal recycling business Foundry business ~ business
Other
Other Copper  metal scrap
Copper Steel  Aluminium metal Aluminium-  rodand  without
scrap scrap scrap  Iron scrap scrap  alloy ingots wire processing Elimination Total
Eft
Eth #ER  ANMI

BR BR  BR  BE  BEE B B EoE o &
HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$O00 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
Tén TEr TEr TR TEr TEr TET TEn  TET  TEn

REVENUE g

External sales IhaRsE 1,164,966 490246 52280 114271 32671 189,988 180,649 114,172 - 2,339,243
Inter-segment sales PERHE 15000 1481 122,001 - 2495 25716 - 1072,181 (1,239,033) -
Total segment revenue PElEER 1179975 491727 174371 114271 35166 215764 180,649 1,186,353 (1,239,033) 2,339,243
Segment profit Db 314858 58833 3294 47366 28427 16,048 38041 88883  (70,960) 554,437
Other income b\ 5711
Other gains and losses EhmREE 98,200
Distribution and selling expenses A 3ERHERST (1,757)
Administrative expenses THER (34,917)
Other expenses AT (5,657)
Finance costs B A (28,829)
Profit before tax 3T 587,194
Income tax expense FEHES (167,540)
Profit for the year EREH 419,654
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment revenues and segment results (continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit resulted in each segment without allocation
of other income, other gains and losses, distribution and selling
expenses, administrative expenses, other expenses, finance costs
and income tax expense. This is the measure reporting to the
executive directors of the Company for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market price.

Segment assets and segment liabilities

Information on segment assets and segment liabilities of the Group
are not reviewed by the CODM for the purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment nor otherwise regularly provided to
the CODM. As a result, no analysis of segment assets and segment
liabilities are presented.

Geographical information

Over 90% of external revenues of the Group during the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 are attributable to customers
established in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group’s major
operating entities. Majority of the Group’s non-current assets are
located in the PRC.

Information about major customers
No individual customer contributed to more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

8. COST OF SALES 8. SHEMKA
Included in cost of sales are the following reversal of allowance for — $5€&E K ANBIE LA QI 1F SHUR -
inventories:
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Reversal of allowance for inventories 1B &R - 308,613
Management assesses whether the cost of inventories exceed their & IE[E N 2 HEALEE A I {EF EMA 2

net realisable value at the end of each reporting period. Management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories with reference to
the ask price of metal scrap in the relevant markets and the quoted
prices of metal on applicable commodity exchanges at the end of
reporting period. As at 31 December 2010, because the market
prices of the commodities were higher than the respective purchase
price of inventories held, no allowance was required. During the
year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recorded a reversal of
allowance for inventories which was provided in 2008 because the
market prices of the commodities at 31 December 2008 were lower
than the purchase prices of certain inventories held as at date.

All the Group’s inventories were stated at cost in the consolidated
statements of financial position at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

BRTFENERFE EEELER Di&
HEAMBEMSNESEEEREEM MR
SN BmEMFERERFE - K=
T—ZF+-A=1+—H HARBERMER
RFENSERBERS  FEAEL
BB BZE_TTNFT_A=T—HILF
B AEERSFERD R_TTN\FE
HBETER_ZEENFT_A=1T—HBH
RIS EREZ B RE THEENREE
K e

W-F-FER-FEAFT A=+
| - RREAA TR A
ESTES

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hfr A

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Interest income FLEHA 6,583 2,415
Rental income for a temporary lease o A A 3,218 2,121
Government subsidies (note) BB (FIRE) 1,572 1,137
Others Hit 175 38
11,548 5,711

note:  The Group received unconditional government grants from a local  [zF : #bJ5 T E T 4 SHE) 7 62 [ 24 75 25 e B

municipal government as an encouragement for the development
and advancement of business.

M4 T AN B e E G BUT B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —Z—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Hhlhsm Rk &8
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHT
Gain from changes in fair value of PTHESRT AR EZSWE M)
derivative financial instruments (note) 10,919 99,047
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) PE H W e (B398 ) 558 43,580 (585)
Reversal of (impairment loss) recognised 1 [E1 5t 8 5 K H i fE W Z B FER Y
on trade and other receivables (REEE) 560 (247)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HE¥E - ME K& EER
equipment (68) (19)
55,001 98,200

note:  The amounts arose from copper and aluminium future contracts and  MffiF | %S LB IRIANREEA N RINER RS

foreign currency forward contracts. HEtE -
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. IR A
2010 2009
—E-BF —ZTTAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Interest on: AN EIEFE -
— bank borrowings wholly repayable —BRAFNEBNRTEES
within five years 36,632 22,902
— amounts due to related parties —ERRE S R 1,596 4,801
- bills payables —ERERE 4,360 1,120
42,588 28,823
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 12. BRELANER)
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT F&T
Profit before tax has been arrived at BRAADER - 206k

after charging:

Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) EEML (FIFE13) 2,963 836
Other staff costs EHih B TR 117,943 59,862
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RAEFIET 2R - TEIEEE Y

excluding those of directors RIREAET B 1,873 699
Share-based payments, excluding those LARRR T3 - TEIFES

of directors AR 138 1,689 -
Total staff costs B TR ERE 124,468 61,397

Cost of inventories recognised as an ER ARSI MFERAR

expense 5,361,645 1,784,806
Listing expenses, included in other WY FFAEMAS

expenses 24,624 5,657
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BENRETE

equipment 12,103 7,642
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B TH & #E 84 867 857
Auditor’s remuneration ZERD N & 4,000 826
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FE M RRMTE(R) L
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & Z= —ZE— T4+ - A =+—HIFFE ol

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS  13. EEREEME

Directors 5%
Details of the emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of the AREFERERNZNAATEENINSEISH
Company for the year are as follows: T

Year ended 31 December 2010: HEZT-ZF+ZR
“t-BIEEE:
Executive directors: BIES:
Mr. Fang Ankong FRERE
Mr. Stephanus Maria van Ooijen Stephanus Maria
(“Mr. van Qoien’) van Qojjent £
(Tvan OoijenE 4 )
Mr. Gu Liyong BEBRAE
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema Ralph Sytze YbemaZt £
Mr. Li Xikui (note) FhELE ()
Dr. Loke Yu (note) B aME T (i3E)
Ms. Zhang Jingdong (note) EFRLT(HHF)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

13. EEREEME (E)

Directors (continued) BE(E)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
RIREF
e HekERh FTEIHKR &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
T T T T
Year ended 31 December HZE-ZENF+— A
2009 =t+—BiIEE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Fang Ankong FRZESE - 480 10 490
Mr. van Qoijen van Ooijent 4 - - - -
Mr. Gu Liyong BFEELE - 338 8 346
Non-executive director: FEHITES ¢
Mr. Ralph Sytze Ybema  Ralph Sytze Ybemast 4 - - - -
- 818 18 836

note:  They are independent non-executive directors appointed on 23 June
2010.

et : ZEFEERBUIRTEEEIN _ZT—F
FRAZT=HEZE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

Employees

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, one (2009: two) was
a director, whose emoluments are included in the disclosures above.
The emoluments of the remaining four (2009: three) individuals were
as follows:

13. EEREEM S (E)

==

RAKEIERSFHALES  Hb—%
(ZZ2TNF MB)RES  HM2C#N
EXERE - FTHBR(ZTETNAF : =5)
ATEBELT -

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET

Salaries and other allowances e M EfbEBL 3,793 984
Retirement benefit scheme IRRTB R BI R

contributions 34 32

3,827 1,016

The emoluments for two of the five highest paid individuals were
below HK$1,000,000, the remaining paid individuals were within
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

14. Fr8HiMAX

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Current tax: RNEATRIA -

Hong Kong B 5,722 -
PRC Enterprises Income Tax AR EERTIS R 118,495 64,540
Other jurisdiction Hib A AR 186 -
124,403 64,540

Underprovision in prior years: RBEFERETR
PRC Enterprises Income Tax PRI RFTSH 594 237
Deferred tax (Note 29) EERIA (F3E29) 4,481 102,763
129,478 167,540

PRC

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries were subject to PRC Enterprises
Income Tax at the rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December
2010 (2009: 25%).

Hong Kong
All the Hong Kong subsidiaries are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
at the rate of 16.5% on their respective estimated assessable profits.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

&
BE_Z—ZZF+_A=+—HIEFE &K
EENFENBAREIRS%NHE(ZE
THE : 25%) P B ZEFTEH -

B
PIEEABHBRRHERS B AFHERTS
FIZ16.5%H R EFR B BTG -

BB I B A VB TR )
R TR R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ —E—ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

14. FiSHiR < ()

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit  FRFTERE S Al B4R S 2 EIREE NGB
before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income  FEFIEBEZA T -
as follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Profit before tax PR A AT & 482,034 587,194
Tax at applicable tax rates (note) LEAREGE 2 RIE ) 120,097 144,524
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ ] F0 74 B 5% B 8 76 57 28
tax purpose 6,117 2,510
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax /8 R T Ug A R 7% 5228
purpose (1,993) (949)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FIERFRIEE BT ST E 182 -
Deferred tax provided on dividends REIF B A AR ETEHFL 2
withholding tax on PRC subsidiaries EIEFIR 4,481 21,218
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 594 237
Income tax expense for the year FRAEHAY 129,478 167,540

note: As the Group operates in different tax jurisdictions, separate  Mf:F : BHRAEEATEAHRETDEERLS @ 17
reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax BRI ALEE R T B R E A EEE
jurisdiction have been aggregated and presented. BEAMHET] -

15. DIVIDENDS 15. RE

EEEBRBEBE_TZTF+_A=1—
BIEFEZRAREERIBEIW(ZZEZA
F8E) EEARRERRBEFAS LER
AL -

A final dividend of HK9 cents per share in respect of the year ended
31 December 2010 (2009: Nil) has been proposed by the directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Annual Report 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BIRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share  ARAFEHE AJEGEIRERRESE BT THIE
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the following LA N&iEstE
data:
2010 2009
—E-=EF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Earnings: Fjﬂ :
Profit for the year attributable to HERERREERFN
owners of the Company for the ZJK AlEEA AE(EEREF]
purposes of basic and diluted
earnings per share 352,798 419,654
Number of shares: mEE
Weighted average number of ordinary — 5+& &A% E A2 FI|H) 3@ A% hnige
shares for the purpose of basic FHEE
earnings per share 868,493,151 750,000,000
Effect of diluted potential ordinary BEEIAREENTE(EE
shares as a result of the share ﬁﬂﬁ?BMﬁﬁFHﬁ%Hﬁ%EiE’ﬂ
options granted under the Pre-IPO B LB E R
Scheme (defined in note 34) 1,029,999 -
Weighted average number of ordinary  &+5 &A% #5522 K| ) & 3@ I hn e
shares for the purpose of diluted FiHgE
earnings per share 869,523,150 750,000,000

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2009 has been adjusted for the 749,999,900 shares
issued pursuant to the capitalisation issue in July 2010, which was
assumed to occur at 1 January 2009.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options granted under
the Scheme (defined in Note 34) because the exercise price of those
options was higher than the average market price of the shares for
the year ended 31 December 2010.

TEHZEC
EEREREFNLE
RN —ZF L ARBERNM B TM T
749,999,000 % f& (7 1E L FHEE « B AL 31T
BRER_ZTNF—A— BT

EEAET-AS+—BILE
BAHET S E T

FESREERTRERERZE(ER
R EES4) P MBI A Bl M R AT AV B AR
ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ ARZEBERENTEESN
HE—Z

TEFT-_A=t—BLEFERD

K mE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - KEREE

Office
Land and Plantand  furniture and Motor Leasehold ~ Construction
buildings machinery  equipment vehicles improvements  in progress Total
Tk BER HARE HENE
BF B e RE #% EEIR by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT FHET FER TR TR TR
COSsT [
At 1 January 2009 RZZZNE
—A—-H 77,353 28,777 4,828 2,371 - 47532 160,861
Exchange realignment A= 60 40 3 2 - ) 103
Additions RE - 1,787 478 101 - 8,361 10,727
Transfers ik 18,400 21,192 - - - (39,592) -
Disposals L& - () 99) - - - (170)
At31 December 2009  R-ZTEAET R
=1-H 95,813 51,719 5,216 2,474 - 16,299 171,521
Exchange redlignment B R 3,435 3,044 306 94 50 283 7,212
Additions NE 27,939 26,567 5,420 2,775 1,363 10,509 74,573
Acquired on acquisition of a UrBE—FIN B A 7]
subsidiery (Note 37) (Fizxa7) - - 166 687 - - 853
Transfers ik 5,859 15,564 - - 1,353 (22,776) -
Disposals L& - (120) 62) (448) - - (630)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FF
+-A=1+-8 133,046 96,774 11,046 5,582 2,766 4,315 253,529
DEPRECIATION Vil
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE
—A-H 16,760 8,584 1,349 1,899 - - 28,592
Exchange realignment 5 13 8 2 - - - 23
Provided for the year FRiE 3,675 2,926 934 107 - - 7,642
Disposals e - (11) 9) - - - (20)
At 31 December 2009 RZETNE
+-A=1+-H 20,448 11,507 2,276 2,006 - - 36,237
Exchange realignment EH AR 782 604 119 78 6 - 1,589
Provided for the year ERRE 3,945 6,273 1,360 281 244 - 12,108
Disposals & - @ (29) (104) - - (135)
At31December2010  H-E-F£
+ZA=+-H 25175 18,382 3,726 2,261 250 - 49,794
CARRYING VALUE RHE
At 31 December 2010 A\ZB-TF
+-F=+-8 107,871 78,392 7,320 3,321 2516 4,315 203,735
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF
+=A=+-H 75,365 40,212 2,940 468 - 16,299 135,284
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The carrying amount of land and building which is situated in Hong
Kong and held under medium-term lease is HK$34,539,000 (2009:
HK$7,069,000) at the end of the reporting period.

The property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their residual value, as follows:

20 years or the relevant lease term,
whichever is shorter

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery 9% - 18%
Office furniture and equipment 9% — 18%
Motor vehicles 9% - 18%

18% or the relevant lease term,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvement

As at 31 December 2010, certain buildings with carrying amount of
HK$102,489,000 (2009: HK$50,384,000) were pledged as security
for bank borrowings granted to the Group.

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold lands
situated in the PRC held under medium term leases and are analysed
for reporting purposes as follows:

17. Y% - BERZE(E)
RERPLEER - LR EBATEROEE
2 i K2 F 2 BRI E 534,539,000 7T
—EZTHLE 7,069,000 7T) °

ME - E R (EETRERIN &t R
RIABER  REATRAFHIENT

T RiEF 20F sk B RAFAAR (LA
BREEBE)

R KAk as 9%ZE18%

MANREREE  9%=18%

B 9%%E18%

HEWERE 18%3kH B HA (JA
BREAE)

RZE—FF+_-_A=+—H FEHEEA
102,489,000/ 7L (ZZZ N4 : 50,384,000
BIL)ME TEFRPEAR TARSERT
BEMER -

18. NS
AN B R S  RATH o B A 21740
HEZBEL - REBRMAFTT :

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Current asset MENEE 890 858
Non-current asset IETEEE 36,435 35,962
37,325 36,820

As at 31 December 2010, prepaid lease payments with carrying
amount of HK$37,325,000 (2009: HK$36,820,000) were pledged as
security for bank borrowings granted to the Group.

R-ZT—ZEF+-_A=+—H EKEEAL
37,325,000/ 7L ( ZZEZ N.F : 36,820,000
BIL)WEMHESEIFEAR TASEBT
BEEER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

19. INVENTORIES 10. 78
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Raw materials R K 1,628,688 892,824
Finished goods IR G 674,737 274,613
2,303,425 1,167,437
20. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS/AMOUNT DUE ~ 20. 3Rz Rz MBS IF 2 RAE R R
TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS "
Share of net
assets of
subsidiaries
M AR
REE
HK$
BT
At 1 January and 31 December 2009 R-_EEAF—HF—BRERt+-HA=+—H -
Capital contribution FE 34,825
Share of loss for the year FRATHEE (242)
Share of foreign currency translation reserve F{h INEE B 5 (& 297

At 31 December 2010 R-E—ZFEF+_A=+—H 34,880

The balance due to non-controlling interests of HK$23,976,000 A& FEIZ A & 2 #5£223,976,000/8 7T
arose from purchases from 8% k& BYEBRAR (LEKX") DNELEALSRKEBNEARAR( LS
during the year. The balance was aged within 30 days. Box | )EEESE - HENKRKA30H °

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Annual Report 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group generally allows its trade customers a credit period of 30
to 90 days. A longer credit period may be granted to trade customers
with good credit quality upon the approval of management. An aged
analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of the reporting
period, net of allowance for doubtful debts and based on the invoice
date, are as follows:

21.E 5 R HEWRIE
AEE—RBETESHEFE0ENEE
Hi o EESEEEIES  AEBRTEEE
RFRIFNESEFPEHERMEEL - 1
SHEBHEER  AEEE S EUCIENR R
BB NER O MREZ RS2 T -

2010 2009
—E-EF —EFEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Trade receivables: B S EINEOR
0-30 days 0% 30H 110,310 45,805
31-60 days 31260H 4,270 13,248
61-90 days 61%290H 10 1,161
91-180 days 91%2180H 484 5,104
Over 180 days Hid180H 596 564
115,670 65,882

Other receivables: E IR
Deposits and prepayments e RIENFHUE 73,054 51,852

Deposits paid for purchase of raw BERHZEMES

materials 124,415 51,774
Rental receivable el & 2,204 2,123
VAT recoverable EEEEIEG 90,190 15,413
Others H 6,114 1,782
295,977 122,944
411,647 188,826

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits to customers are reviewed regularly. With
reference to the track records of these customers, the directors
of the Company consider all trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period are of good credit quality.

REMFMELA > AEEFHEETFPNE
BEE UREPEEFEERSE  KTEP
MEERBENEL - R2EZEREPHN
BERLE - ARREFAR  REHRPEE
B FBEESERRFENEEERR °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21.8 5 K H ft FE Uk 5008 ()
Included in the trade receivable balance are the following past due & 5 EAS S B TE I & EE BB EN
debts for which no impairment loss has been provided: 1 HRE RS

Aging analysis of trade receivables which are past due B @ HIE KRB (ER B 5 FE UK IEEE

but not impaired BT
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHT
31-60 days 31£260H 3,982 1,463
61-90 days 61290H - 142
91-180 days 91£180H 484 660
Over 180 days HiB180H 596 53
5,062 2,318

The Group does not hold any collateral against the above amounts. 7= B I £ 35 A bt 3008 2 E (] K 3 - K
However, management believes that these amounts are still 1 EEERAENEBAETENEEEEYT
recoverable because there has not been an adverse change in the — #EBEE - #EZZFRIAAIURE ©

relevant entities’ credit quality.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts IR ENE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FET
Balance at beginning of the year FHEEH 554 553
(Reversal of) impairment losses B 5 R E A EUGRIBERE
recognised on trade and other BAERBEEE)
receivables (560) 247
Amounts written off as uncollectible kY= NI S E S - (247)
Foreign exchange difference [EHZEE 6 1
Balance at end of the year FIREER = 554
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21.EZ R EMEWFIE(E)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REEBERNEE)(E)

(continued)

Trade and other receivables that were denominated in currencies  IABBEEBE A FINALE K AN SR EHER
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as 25 R E M EW KB T -

follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHERT FHET
uUSh ETT = 31,598
EUR BT - 77
22. BILLS RECEIVABLES 22 FEWERE
An aged analysis of the Group’s bills receivables at the end of the R E2IRHLEE D - KEBBEWSIBESRD
reporting period, based on their invoice dates, are as follows: WIREERBE®RNT ¢
2010 2009
—2-=F —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
0-30 days 0Z£30H 3,034 1,365
31-60 days 31Z260H 6,848 -
61-90 days 61£290H 1,889 -
91-180 days 91£180H 2,858 -
14,629 1,365

BaXtEBEARAR Fk 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED PARTIES

23.FEW (FEY) BBE S R

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Amount due from a related party e 28 5 A
Non-trade nature (note iv) FE S HE(MEEiv)
New Asset Holdings Limited (“New New Asset Holdings Limited
Asset”) (note i) ([New Asset]) (HI7i) = 371
Amounts due to related parties P& 5RIE
Non-trade nature (note v) FESMHE (M)
Delco Asia (note ii) Delco Asia( Bt sEii)
— interest bearing at 3 months London  — 12 =1 A BRI TRIZEIT A
Interbank Offered Rate+1% per II1% I EFIEFEHFE
annum = (138,376)
— non-interest bearing —TEE - (29,156)
Mr. Fang, his close family members and J74E4 « BITERIEK E K&
entities controlled by him (note iii) E RSl A9 &) (I i)
— non-interest bearing —T& B = (149,381)
- (316,913)
Analysed as: DI
Current liabilities MENEE (93,205)
Non-current liabilities MBI AE = (223,708)
- (316,913)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED PARTIES
(continued)

The amounts due to related parties that are denominated in currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as
follows:

23. R (FEAY) BBE 5 ;IR ()

A B SR 128 A9 A B DA 0 S A B
BENRE S OB T

2010 2009

—E-FF —EETNF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

UsD ETT - 138,455
notes: MIEE -

(i) New Asset has a non-controlling beneficial interest in the Company.

(i) Mr. van Ooijen, a director of the Company, was a director and a
shareholder of Delco Asia during the year.

(i) Mr. Fang is a director and a controlling beneficial shareholder of the
Company.

(iv) The balances at the end of the reporting period were the maximum
amount outstanding during the year. The balances represent expenses
paid by the Company on behalf of related parties. All non-trade balances
were repayable on demand.

(v) These represent advances to finance the Group’s operations. All the
balances were either repaid or capitalised during the year.

M
(i)

(il

()

V)

New AssetfE A AN A B FEIEI E 25 o

RFER - AAQ 7] E Hvan Ooijen %t 4 A Delco
AsiafVE B REH o

FRERARANERFIEREERR -
RERMEEANERAFARSERE

B BHEARARERBED XNORAX -
PrEIEE SESIVEIREKIEE -

ZETRER/ANEEZERHESHBEN -
PREREHRERFREEREARL

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24 THESMTE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Derivative financial asset TTESREE
Aluminium future contracts (note i) tREIE A L (KR = 1,072
Derivative financial liability TTEeREE
Foreign currency forward contracts HNEE R B & 49 (BT i)
(note ii) 205 1,603

EARMEEARITE F 2010



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RE BRI RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 £ —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
notes:

M

(i)

Aluminium future contracts (net settlement)

The Group entered into Aluminium future contracts in order to manage
its inventory level and its exposure to the price risk of Aluminium. These
contracts were actively traded in an active market and were measured at
fair values based on unadjusted quoted price at the end of the reporting
period, with gain or loss recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Major terms of the outstanding aluminium future contracts at the end of
the reporting period are set out below:

31 December 2009

4 TELSBMITE(E)

BT -

M

EAEANOFER)

AEBECFIZIBEALN  UEBEFEK
FREHRERR NE2RBEER - ZF
BRPIERTIS EKRER B ERNAREHE
WEULTENE  BRERZEENERR
EF'EEE//&\ °

RESHRPLEER - R EHEBPEAONE
ZEFT

—2FAF+=A=+-A

Contract price Standard trading unit Unit bought Maturity

BHER BEEESEN EBEEN EHA

Aluminium future contracts: 5 tonnes 300 From 15 January 2010

Buy at prices, ranged from RMB16,098 to 510 to 15 March 2010

RMB16,396 per tonne B-T—TF

mHEEL —A+hBZE

BN T EWARK16,098TE —E-TF
AR¥16,396THIERIEE =A+AH

Foreign currency forward contracts (gross settlement)

The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to
minimise its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were
measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in profit or loss.

Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts are as follows:

31 December 2010

Forward contract rates
BHEHARRE

Notional amount

BEREH

(i)

IRHASNES ) (BEEE)

ANEE B RT3 iR HAONE A 49 DA K N [ B o
ZEANNERPLEE AR IRERE KL
AFENE  BEBEREERERERETER -
IR HASNE A M EBIEFRAOT ¢
—E-ZH5+-A=+—H

Maturity
EE R

6 contracts to buy USD10,892,748 in total
NP A 10,892,748 LRI A KD

31 December 2009

Forward contract rates

BEHEHRRE

Notional amount

R

USD1: RMB6.4710 to RMB6.6580
12670« ARK6.47T10TE AREB.65807T

From 19 April 2011 to
6 December 2011
BE-ZT——FWATNAEZE
—ET——F+=ZAXAH

—EThE+=A=+-8

Maturity
R

13 contracts to buy USD20,537,000 in total
+ =1 A £20,537,000E LK & 4

USD1: RMB6.7423 to RMB6.8505
1570 - ARKEG.74237TE ARHE6.85057T

From 12 April 2010 to
18 November 2010
BT ZFWNA+=HZE
i s R WAN=]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —Z—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Derivative financial instruments that were denominated in currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as
follows:

4 TELSBMITE(E)

NHEEEERNINGEEBEUINEEGTE
MOTESR T AT ¢

2010 2009

—E-FF —EETNF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

UsD ETT 205 1,603

25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits

These represent deposits pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits amounting to
HK$351,684,000 (2009: HK$241,440,000) have been pledged to
secure short-term bank borrowings and are therefore classified as
current assets. The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rates as
follows:

5. BEARITER ZRHERITE
RBTEHREES
EEIRRITER
ZEFFERBITIEF A BRAERR B
FITEEERERATER © 351,684,0008
T(ZEZTAE : 241,440,000 7T ) I 1F K
EIRIRERERITIE A ER - AUt 88
BREBEE - CEBBITETIEATELR
g

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF

Interest rate per annum FH =

Restricted bank deposits

The balance in 2009 represented deposits placed with the financial
institutions to secure the margin accounts of the Group for trading
copper and aluminium futures in the relevant financial institutions.
The restricted bank deposits were non-interest bearing.

1.71%102.50% 1.98% t02.25%
1.71%E2.50% 1.98%%2.25%

R HIRI T

RETTAFREHIEAEE RIS S R
A B E IR R E IR R R
SRBBOITR - FRHRTFRATE

B o
o

EARMEBARQTE F 2010



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —Z—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)
Bank balances and cash

These represent cash and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The bank balances carry interest
rates as follows:

25. B EPBITERZRFERITE
ROBITREBRRE ()
RITRBIERS
REFEOERSRRLHEA=EAR
TEREIRITIFR - RITEHFIEMT :

2010 & 2009
—E-FER
—2BNE

Interest rate per annum FEFI=

Pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash held in the PRC with an aggregate amount of
HK$399,643,000 (31 December 2009: HK$279,184,000) were
denominated in RMB and were subject to foreign exchange control.

Pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and bank balances
and cash that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

0.36% to 1.15%
0.36%%1.15%

FEFBFENEIEMRITER - ZRHIET
TR ERIR 1T 4 #7 ) 3R & 4858 £399,643,000
BLT(ZBEZEALF+_A=Z+—8":
279,184,000/ 7T) * 2EUAREANEL T
HSNEEH] o

NEREBEAREEBUINEETHENTD
ERRTER - RGBT REIRITAER
KNI

2010 2009

—E-ZF —TENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT TET

usD v 48,401 36,696
EUR BT 43,087 358
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —Z—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The average credit period for trade purchases is 30 to 60 days.

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables,
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

26.B 5 REAMENFRIA
S RENTHEEHR0E60A -

UTRAKEESRNFERERAEER
HIRREE D ITIREZAMZ5NT ¢

2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHERT FAT

Trade payables: B S FERFIR
0-30 days 0% 30H 101,086 64,630
31-60 days 31Z260H 325 18,519
61-90 days 61290H = 8,780
91-180 days 91£180H 1,933 8,020
Over 180 days Hid180H 81 1,679
103,425 101,628

Other payables: E At FRIA ¢
Other payables and accruals H e EIE R ERHE R 71,589 23,512
Interest payable JES LB 5,335 918
Receipts in advance from customers B EF A 7,888 10,547
84,812 34,977
188,237 136,605

Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies other

NEREBERAREEBIAINEETENE

than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as 5 REMEMFIENT ¢
follows:

2010 2009
—B-2F —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
usD e 30,813 90,613
EUR &t 36,716 1,241

EARMEBARQTE F 2010



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —Z—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

27. BILLS PAYABLES 27T B EHE
An aged analysis of the Group’s bills payables at the end of the AEFEEMNZEAZSHMLEEONERD
reporting period is as follows: e
2010 2009
—2-=F —ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
0-30 days 0Z30H 40,985 8,510
31-60 days 31£E60H 23,614 -
61-90 days 61£290H 84,551 22,752
91-180 days 91E180H - 82,864
149,150 114,126

Bills payables that are denominated in currency other than the IABFEBARIEEEEINE B ENE

functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: NEBNT :
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
usD ET - 23,118
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ —E—ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS 28.R1TEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Fixed-rate borrowings: TEEE
Secured bank loans ﬁ BIRRITER 584,265 497,012
Unsecured bank loans EILIFIRITER 912,407 125,590
Variable-rate borrowings: FEEE
Secured bank loans BEPIRITE - 160,639
Unsecured bank overdrafts EIMIFRITE S = 15,805
1,496,672 799,046

The effective interest rates of the borrowings are as follows:

fEEHERFENT

2010 2009
—g-gF  —TIAF

Effective interest rate per annum: ERFERE
Fixed-rate borrowings EREE
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currency other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are as follows:

1.50% t0 6.74%  1.29% t0 5.31%
1.50%Z6.74% 1.29%%5.31%
N/A  1.62%to 1.82%

TEA 1.62%%1.82%

LNEE%;‘%I TI EEER SN EBIHERN A
EEEWT

2010 2009

—E-EF —ETNF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

UsD ETT 949,930 693,371

EARMEBARQTE F 2010



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

29. DEFERRED TAX

The deferred tax (assets) liabilities recognised by the Group and

29. IEER1E

AEEERNRELERA(EE) AELRERSF

movements thereon during the year are as follows: NEEBIIN T -
Change in
fair value of
derivative  Distributable
Inventories financial profits of
provision instruments  subsidiaries Total
fTEEMIE  HMEBELEMN
FERE AVESZD  TAEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TAT
At 1 January 2009 RZZETNF—H—H (76,545) (5,000) - (81,545)
Charge to profit or loss for the year FRzT AB# 76,545 5,000 21,218 102,763
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZENF+-A=1+—H - - 21,218 21,218
Charge to profit or loss for the year &Rzt A 1B - - 4,481 4,481
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZF+-A=1+—H - - 25,699 25,699
Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, with effect from 1 RIBEPBEDEAEEE BT N\F—HA

January 2008 onwards, withholding income tax at 5% is imposed on
dividends declared out of profits earned by PRC entities for investors
incorporated in Hong Kong. Upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange (“Listing”), the directors of the
Company recommend a policy to declare 25% of the distributable
group’s profit as dividends to the Company’s shareholders.
Accordingly, withholding income tax is provided to the extent of
25% of profits earned by the group’s PRC subsidiaries starting
from the year ended 31 December 2010. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with distributable earnings of PRC
subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in
the consolidated financial statements was HK$513,980,000 (2009:
HK$424,360,000).

—Hi REBEMAINEREEBRPE
ERATHREUE T i IR AR BB MR5% /TR
HATER - FADBRORE AT Em ([ E
ME  NARESZZRMN—EEEK - ]
MAR B IR E R A 2 B E G F H25%
EBRE - At BEEZZT—TF+=A
=+ —HIFEE - AREARBHATER
FTHIRAEME - tELAANSE E P BURT BB A B FT B ER
T B25% AR o AR B IRER ERIELE
A A ErEP BB AR A 2k 2 FIFEE
O ET RS 4 = BE 445 5513,980,00008 7L (= F
THEE 424,360,000 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REMBERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. BRA
Number of
shares Amounts
R EE &8
HK$
BT
Authorised: JEIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each N—EZNF-A—ABRK
at 1 January 2009 and ZEEAF+ZA=1—H
31 December 2009 FRRMEE0.01B LAY L BA% 5,000,000 50,000
Increase on 23 June 2010 (note i) R-ZE—EFEA-+=80EH
(B &ED 4,995,000,000 49,950,000
At 31 December 2010 N-ZE—-EF+-_A=+—H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITIAE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZZETNF—A—HRK
at 1 January 2009 and —EEANF+_A=+—H
31 December 2009 FRMEE.O1EITH L B 100 1
Capitalisation issue (note i) B A 21T () 749,999,900 7,499,999
Issue of new shares (note ii) BATHTAR (B L) 250,000,000 2,500,000
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZEF+-A=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET T
Shown in the consolidated financial RERE SRR TR
statements 10,000 -

EARMEEARQTE F 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

notes:

() Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company on 23 June 2010, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased to HK$50,000,000. The directors of the Company were
also authorised to capitalise a sum of HK$7,499,999 standing to the
credit of the Company’s reserve account by applying such sum in
paying up in full at par 749,999,900 shares for allotment and issue to
shareholders. On 12 July 2010, the directors allotted and issued such
shares as aforesaid and gave effect to the capitalisation issue.

(i) On 12 July 2010, the Company issued 250,000,000 shares pursuant to
the Company’s initial public offering at a price of HK$2.43 per share upon
Listing.

The new shares allotted and issued ranked pari passu in all respects
with the other shares then in issue.

31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged the
following assets to banks to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group:

30. A (#&)
IS

i) BEARAE—BRER_-_ZT—ZFF XA
ZHZHBBMNEERER  ARQBAERE
Ji% 7 3% 1 2 50,000,000 7T °© KA R E E IR
TEREA AR AR A807,409,09975 7T
REERBE R EAR - R AS LR EARE
EM{EAUT 749,999,900 B 17 - LARD 2% K 2677
FRE -R_ZT—ZTFLA+=-H EZEC
Bogs R EETT AR - WE BT TE A LT ©

(i) RZZE—2FLA+-H FARARLHE

BEADNRNE X AMEERTR2.43E T
KB %£77250,000,000 BE17 ©

BES R TR RS R BT AR
HEFEHELEE RS RS -

31. EEEHE
REBPLEER - AEED ARITEFAT
BE  UERETAEEY —RIRITEE

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Buildings (Note 17) EF(HF17) 102,489 50,384
Prepaid lease payments (Note 18) TEfTF S (MRE18) 37,325 36,820
Bank deposits (Note 25) HRITIE R (MI7E25) 351,684 241,440
491,498 328,644

Chiho-Tiande Group Limited « Annual Report 2010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. EAREIE
2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Capital expenditure contracted for but ~ FEUEEWE - BiRE L REDITH
not provided in the consolidated BARREE P RR P BED
financial statements in respect of BARRY
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 10,446 4,776

33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their basic payroll to the retirement benefit
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

33. ?J?ME*IF‘I'%J
AEERBERBERE RS ([REERF
%IJJ)1\ﬂﬁﬂﬁi&%ﬁﬁﬁééﬁ%@%Eﬁi?ﬁ%u
RS - BESHEZEEER —BEL
EEAES 2 ES BAKEMFEED R
ﬁ REBRESHENRTE  BEERHEER

D BIZBIZ AR TE AT AR EL R AT BIE AR - AN
lﬁﬂ@ﬁ*‘i\%;ﬂzﬂﬁ*fTEE*E?EEZ&%WF
MR AR o WED RU KA BEHRA
BIEMHHK -

R EEEAZETBEBFIMEEZ
BRERRKAENEE - FEMEBARAR
BEEXFHIMNE T B O LLAZERKERNE
B RERERMNEHRES - AREHE
RIENIE 8 2 E— B ERRIBEF EWEH AT

K -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders of the Company
on 23 June 2010, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Scheme, the Company could grant options to directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors) and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters or
service providers of any member of the Group (“Participants”) to
subscribe for shares in the Company. The purpose of the Pre-
IPO Scheme was to recognise the contribution that Participants
made or might have made to the growth of the Group. It aimed
to give Participants an opportunity to acquire a personal stake
in the Company and helped motivate Participants to optimise
their performance and efficiency, and also to help attract or retain
Participants whose contributions are important to the long-term
growth and profitability of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted is 12,140,000 shares, representing 1.214% of shares of the
issued share capital of the Company immediately upon Listing, but
excluding any shares which may fall to be issued upon the exercise
of the options granted or to be granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme,
the other schemes and shares that may fall to be issued upon the
exercise of the over-allotment option in connection with the Listing.

Share options granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme are exercisable
at the initial offer price to the public (i.e. HK$2.43 per share). Each of
the holders of the share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme shall be
entitled to exercise his/her options in the following manner:

34. LR BERBNRZRS

(@) BRAFAEERIERETE
BEALARZEREN-_Z—ZTEXA
“tEEBRBNEEASR AL RRMY
WARIEE RTIEAIE T B ([ R AR B E AT
2 ]) o BB ERARMBENE - AAT
AAAEEER(RIENTES  FNTE
ERBIUFNITES)RES AEEEM
AR ERRIMEEBAA - EER - D &
B HEE - RIE - BE  ¥BEBE A
Mo . BE ARGt ([2 8
=) BEBERE - RBAARIRG - BX
NRRENH B S EET 2 ML HAEE R
BIEL R AR EL M E R - MR mERE
BEBEEARAMARE  HBKSRA%
ERERBE - URANZEHEAERER
EREBHNEZESENREE o

ARERHMEBEREM SRS BRMHEE B
12,140,000 5 * HHERERE EMEAR
AIEBITIRAFRMNA1.214%  ETBHE
EITEREE XA ARAEEA 2 R EMT S
B TR L REERET A se g T TR
EARtn - ARETT{EEE - A B R Rahd
REHE T AT RE IS T EEATROARD ©

RIBERAREE R L ABERERS
TRZALHYIZHEE (BER2.43
ABTTTTEE - BRARBEERF ST SER
BB ABDBRATI A THREERBERE

Service period that Maximum accumulated A Em AHI%E

share options can be percentage of  A[{T{EBIREN A {T{EBRERN
exercised after the date of Listing share options exercisable R HARS EStESLE LR
Attaining 1 year 30% HHE—F 30%
Attaining 2 years 60% FEHEBHWF 60%
Attaining 3 years 100% HBAE=% 100%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 4. R BERNR2RS (8)
(continued)
(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (@) BXAFESHIEBIETZI(E)

During the year, 12,140,000 options were granted to eligible ER - RiEBE X ARREREEAAEEKRE
Participants under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the total number  HiZ$2 H12,140,00015 BSR4 + T EF TR AT
of shares that can be issued upon the exercise of all options is BB A] L 1THIAL (D 4288 512,140,000
12,140,000 shares, representing approximately 1.214% of the g%  HERARTR _E—FF+_H4
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2010. =+—HBZ(TIRA4)1.214% o BEJFHRER
The estimated fair value of the options at the date of grant is %1 A B {E 5+ A F1E 47,837,000 7T ©
HK$7,837,000. Details of the share options granted under the Pre-  1RIEE A AR EFET 2 HERELH

IPO Scheme and their subsequent movements are as follows: BEFHFISHOT

Options granted
during the year
Category of Eligible Date of grant Exercise price and outstanding
Participants (note) per share  Exercisable period Vesting date asat 31.12.2010
REARLER
“B-FF
RiAH +=A=1+-H
RERSEEER (BE) BRTEE  TEH BREAH I RAT GV BB PR A
Directors 12 July 2010 HK$2.43  12July 2011 -12July 2012 12 July 2011 1,477,500

BZ —E-ZF 24381 —E——FtA+ZAZ —2——F

tA+ZH -+ A+ZH tA+=H

13 July 2012 - 12 July 2013 13 July 2012 1,477,500

—“T-——FtHAt+=HZ —T——F
“T-Z#t+A+-H +A+=H
13 July 201312 July 2014 13 July 2013 1,970,000
“Z-Z#+A+ZHE —T-=F
“Z-ME+A+H +A+=H

4,925,000
Employees under continuous 12 July 2010 HK$2.43 12 July 2011 - 12 July 2012 12 July 2011 2,164,500
employment contract —E-ZF 24381 —E——FtA+ZAZ —2——F
BEERAVTHEER tA+ZH “T-"%tA+-H tA+=H
13 July 2012 - 12 July 2013 13 July 2012 2,164,500

—“T-—FtAt+=HZ —T——F
“T-Z#t+A+-H +A+=H
13 July 2013 - 12 July 2014 13 July 2013 2,886,000
“Z-Z#+A+ZHE —T-=F
“ZT-ME+A+-H +A+=H

7,215,000
12,140,000
Exercisable at the end of the year -
FRATRE
Weighted average exercise price 2.43
I 1T B

note: It was the date when Participants accepted the offer of options under ~ H/aZ /ff//?’;‘/ﬁﬁ%z BEIRIE 5 FT g AR AT
the Pre-IPO Scheme. B A A -

EARMEEARQTE F 2010 115




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

34. UR I RHERNR 2 Z (&)
(@) BRAFIEERIBAE S ()

The fair value of the options was calculated using the Binomial — BEAFEIZ —BEAENFE - ZEH
model. The inputs into the model were as follows: Fréa AR T
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3

£—it Tt F=Ht
Market price miE HK$2.39 HK$2.39 HK$2.39
Exercise price 1B E HK$2.43 HK$2.43 HK$2.43
Expected volatility SEEEN 49.798% 54.803% 51.954%
Expected option period TEHARE AR A HARR 1.492 years®  2.495years®  3.495 yearstE
Risk-free rate 4 [ B | 2 0.514% 0.776% 1.109%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B =R 3.557% 3.557% 3.557%
Expected volatility was determined with reference to the historical %ﬁﬁsﬁ&fpa DESEETAELR ETAEMN
volatility of certain comparable listed companies. BERIBET °
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of  sHEBEREAFEAESENBREIIRESE

the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

The Group recognised an expense of HK$2,000,000 for the year in
relation to share options granted by the Company under the Pre-IPO
Scheme.

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

In addition, pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders of the
Company on 23 June 2010, a post-IPO share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was also adopted.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant options to
directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) and employees of the Group
and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters or service providers of any member of the Group
who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group (“Eligible Scheme Participants”). The
Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to reward
Eligible Scheme Participants who have contributed to the Group
and to encourage Eligible Scheme Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and the Shares for the benefit
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Scheme is
valid and effective for a period of ten years from 23 June 2010.

MR ERETTE - BREEERETIEBR
R TEEEMAAAR o

FR - AEERBEARFIBEE X ARE
£ B AT 213% B A% 4 1 3R 7 2. 2,000,0007%8
7_E °

()Eﬂ@%% SR BRERT
AN - REBAD T2 BERN B —FFX
ﬂ*+25ﬁ@%%Eﬁ%§ AR TR
ERARBE BB ([t 8)) -

REZEE ARBARAEFTS2ENER
REREB/AEEFLERNAREES
(BREATES  FRTES B LI
E2)REE - AREEMKEARIMA
A R DR AERE - HER -
RE - FP  XBRBH  AZ2XBRBH %
HEASRBHER([GERESEE])E
IR - %At B — B BERET &) - B
REEERAESEEHAKBEIELNER
RSB ERF 812 8E /AR R MR
H BB s e T A A B R R B E M R
Yoo BB T -EFENA- T = HiEEs
TERBR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #Z —E—ZEF+-A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of shares of the Company as of the date of the approval
by the shareholders in general meeting, without approval from the
Company’s shareholders. The shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. The maximum number of shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible
Scheme Participant in any twelve-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as of the date of
grant.

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any
of their respective associates is required to be approved by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options). Where
granting of options to a substantial shareholder or any independent
non-executive director or their respective associates which will result
in the number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the twelve-month
period up to and including the date of such grant exceed of 0.1%
of the total number of shares in issue and have an aggregate value
in excess of HK$5 million, based on the official closing price of the
shares at the date of each grant, such proposed grant of options
will be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting.

Options granted have to be taken up within a period of 28 days from
the date of offer upon payment of HK$1.

34. URBI RHERNR 2 Z (&)

(b) BR AR ERBRESI(E)
RITEAREZA B TR B OMA BN
AIREEITIRE RN E A KT FHIBEIR
KR A #E B HE AR 2R B I 10%
(BARDBIRERALE) - ATTEREZAE
R AR R AU AR SR B E R R
TTERI P B B T A] RE AT EV AR D TSR
FHR TSRS T 2 BT H930% © WE
i+ EABEEEREBH - FITERE
Zat Bl R AR BEMEMERER BRI E 4
REREZEERENWBRE(BEET
158 R i R 1T RO RE ASCAR ) T 3877 IS T 317
MmN EE TEEENE L ARE BT
BADE1% o

MARRES FETHRABRETERE
(FER ETHRANEES O EMEEA
BOEMIERE BB ERITES (T
B 5 BEREAR ANBIENTT
EE)HE - EREERESEBILIEH
TEERFPESENTMBE AR L ER
o BEEN T @AM EE R E
(BEZB)RETERZZEATEL RS TR
HHEERE(BERTE - BEEREARIT
FREERE) MBETRE TEITHNROEE
BB EITRMOAHEMN01%  AREBESE
HEHBROMNE A RTENE - BEEA
5,000,000/ 7T + BIZBRFAN A &) 8 B8 e P
KIRERMIRR A S FitER - AR 2ERE
I BEARAE o

PRI ZANME 2 B BAERT 28 H N4 -
BEMRZBNUET
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price is determined by the board of directors and but in
any event shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the
offer date, which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date; and

(i) the nominal value of the shares.

Options granted are exercisable for a period to be notified by the
board of directors to each grantee and such period shall expire not
later than 4 years from the date of grant of options.

During the year, 3,770,000 options were granted to Eligible Scheme
Participants under the Scheme and the total number of shares that
can be issued upon the exercise of all options is 3,770,000 shares,
representing approximately 0.38% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2010. The estimated fair value of the
options at the date of grant is HK$3,763,000.

Share options granted under the Scheme during the year are
exercisable at the price of HK$3.38 per share. Each of the holders of
the share options under the Scheme shall be entitled to exercise his/
her options in the following manner:

Maximum accumulated
percentage of share

Service period that
share options can be

34. UR I RHERNR 2 Z (&)

(b) BRAFZEREAETSE(E)
TEEMEEREE - HERDAITEER
THEEZ RS

() NEZ2BH(ZEARBIMILEESFZ
ZERBEEF) B E BRI
BT E T E

(i) BEREZEHPIDALERBIMNT
B ¥R P B D B SR PR F 19 B 5 MR
miE &

(iiy F&fHEEE °

FEERAE T S B MG S AR AR IR
HE - TR SRR R 4 B st
P4 1 T -

FR - RBZAEIREG ERFTE2EERD
3,770,00017 B AR #E - ™ A 1T Fr A I8 g i
i Al B2 1TRI AR 1 2 $53,770,000 8 & 11 -
HERARAAR_—_ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H
B TR AN 490.38% ° BERRAE AR 1 H HiRY
st AF{E 53,763,000 7T °

FA - REBZEEIR OB ERER3.38
BTCRERITEE ° A8 TR B A A
E)EREA TN AT TIEEL R A

R=F—%F
RAZT=REATE ATEBRED

exercised after 22 September 2010 options exercisable IR RERN RIS HARS 2iTE DL LR
Attaining 1 year 30% HBHE—F 30%

Attaining 2 years 60% HBEMF 60%

Attaining 3 years 100% H#HH=F 100%
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ —E—ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 4. BB AEBREIRZR S (&)
(continued)
(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) b) BRAFEEERBRETSI(E)

REZFEREMNR T —FF+ A

Details of the share options granted under the Scheme, all of which

remained outstanding as at 31 December 2010, are as follows:

=+ —RIDRITENBEEF BT

Options granted
during the year
Category of Eligible Date of grant Exercise price and outstanding
Scheme Participants (note) pershare  Exercisable period Vesting date as at 31.12.2010
RERZHER
ZE-%F
RitBE +=R=t-H
RERTHSEEER ik BRITEE RH GEAH R AT R R
Employees under continuous 22 September 2010 HK$3.38 22 September 2011 - 22 September 2011 1,131,000
employment contract —Z-%F 3.38ET 22 September 2012 —2——F
EEERANTHES 2y = “E—EAACTZHE AAZTZH
ZZ-ZEnRZ+ZA
23 September 2012 - 23 September 2012 1,131,000
22 September 2013 —F-CF
ZE-ZENRAZTZHE AAZT=A
“E-=FNAZTZH
23 September 2013 - 23 September 2013 1,508,000
22 September 2014 =%
“E-ZEAACTZAE AAZtZA
ZE-MEAAZTZH
3,770,000
Exercisable at the end of the year -
FRAR
Weighted average exercise price 3.38
IMETERE

AR B B2 BEZNREZ IR

note: It was the date when Eligible Scheme Participants accepted the offer — FffzT :

of options under the Scheme. 2 AR iR B R o
The fair value of the options was calculated using the Binomial R #E AT EIZ-—BARENAE  ZEAFT
model. The inputs into the model were as follows: ABIET -
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
%14 24 s34
Market price & HK$3.38787T  HK$3.38%87C  HK$3.38% 7T
Exercise price I E HK$3.38787L  HK$3.3887T  HK$3.38% 7T
Expected volatility TEET R IR 47.816% 55.886% 53.523%
Expected option period TE FT 5 A BA A 1.5yearsE 2503 years®  3.503 yearstF
Risk-free rate fE g 1) 2 0.43% 0.625% 0.847%
Expected dividend yield TEEARR Bk a3 2.515% 2.515% 2.515%

EARMEEARQTE F 2010
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Expected volatility was determined with reference to the historical
volatility of certain comparable listed companies.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

The Group recognised an expense of HK$500,000 for the year
in relation to share options granted by the Company under the
Scheme.

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(I) Transactions

During the year, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

34. LRID RERNR

(b) BRAFEEEBRETSI(E)
TEFDRIE2RE TR A LR EmARHBE
WIREEE ©

X2 X5 (&)

AEBREATEMAZEENRRIZESN
REM[FTME - BEREEERS TEERR
W RIZEM AT R

AEERFARARRIREERAREER
FE AR T B3R H B A M HE R 7 X 500,00078

JC °

35. BELHE
() 25
RER  AEERBESGUTR

2010 2009
—2-=F —ZETNF
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$°000 HK$’000
BELER REME TET T
Delco Asia Interest expense
M BFX 951 2,797
Mr. Fang and/or his close Interest expense
family members and FBFAX
entities controlled by him
E%E&/ﬁ HIR SN =P
HiZHlE R 645 2,004
Delco Europe B.V. (“Delco Europe”) Purchasing support service
(note ) fee expense
(P 5ED) REESIRRIEE AR - 5,467
BaisT PN Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
BEWE  BEKAR 3,286 -
Purchase of scrap metals
BEETE 20,401 -
Sales of scrap metals
HERTE 16,212 -

H.P.L. Metals B.V. (“‘HPL”) and
SVO Company B.V. (“SVO”)

Acquisition of Delco Europe (note i)
W B Delco Europe (Hfi3ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(I) Transactions (continued)
notes:

(i) Delco Europe became a subsidiary of the Company on 1 January 2010.
Further details are set out in Note 37.

(i) On 1 January 2010, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Delco
Europe from HPL and SVO, the holding companies of a shareholder
of the Company, for a consideration of EUR100 in cash which was
equivalent to its net asset value at that date.

(I) Balances
Details of balances with related parties are set out in Note 20 and
Note 23.

(Il Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company and the five highest paid employees
are identified as key management members of the Group, details of
their compensation during the year are set out in Note 13.

35. BAE T & (&)

() 25 (&)

PisE

() Delco EuroperZE—ZFF—A—HAXALRR
BIRIMTEE A A] « FHIEEMIEEST -

iy R=ZF—ZTF—A—H AEERAKXQH
— 2 B R B 2 A% & A1 HPL K& SVO Y B Delco
Europe2 %4 - KB A100BUTIRE (HE
#Delco Europei iz B EEFE) ©

() &5
ERRRIE T 2 AR EHIB BN B 20 R FT3E23

(INEEEEAEME
ARREERALR ST EERALEEE
EEW AR - HERNENK S SIS ERN M
F13

(IV) Other disclosure (V) EAb i FE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Personal guarantees provided to 77 e A R FR SRR R B BEaRTT
the Group by Mr. Fang and his close {2 E AR EE R HAEAER
family members regarding banking
facilities - 449,921
Amount of the above facilities utilised ~ ANEBEFTH FilliZ &%
by the Group - 259,285

The above guarantees were released during the year ended 31
December 2010.

HiERREE—F-TF+_A=1—H
LEEFERRRR -

EARMEEARQTE F 2010



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ —E—ZEF+_A=+—HILFE

36. OPERATING LEASES 36. R&EHE
The Group as lessee REBERAMA
2010 2009
—E-BF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Minimum lease payments paid under FRBEKLHES MHZERS -
operating leases during the year:
Plant and machinery [ T 5,914 45

EHE  ARBERETAHEL

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for 4 2 R Hi4
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating & FH & #55 T 51/B35 i B A A9 R 2R S (X FH 4

70 4
leases which fall due as follows: EJI N

2010 2009

—E-ZF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FHET T

Within one year —F R 13,849 227

In the second to fifth years inclusive “ERF(RREEREME) 49,622 1,364

Over five years FEE 48,786 -

112,257 1,591

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group & IEAREBERE THE M2
for certain of its plant and machinery. Leases are negotiated for an W<  BOLHEEAFHLF - HEE
average term of seven years with fixed rentals. JE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

36. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor (continued)

Rental income of subleasing a leasehold land in the PRC on a
temporary basis during the year ended 31 December 2010 was
HK$3,218,000 (2009: HK$2,121,000). The sublease was negotiated
for one year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

36. KEHE(E)
REBEREMBAE)

HE " ZT-ZF+-_A=t+—RAIFEE K
EERFEERS>AAET HNESKRAR
3,218,000/8 7L (ZZEZ L4 : 2,121,0007%
o) ATEBER—F o

REHPEER - AEEERBEPLHTEA TR
KEEME

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Within one year —F R 1,073 1,062

37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 1 January 2010 (the “Acquisition Date”), the Group acquired
100% equity interest in Delco Europe from HPL and SVO for a
consideration of EUR100 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,000) in
cash, which was Delco Europe’s net asset value at the Acquisition
Date. HPL and SVO are the holding companies of Delco Participation
B.V., a shareholder of the Company. Since the Group obtained
control over Delco Europe on the Acquisition Date, the Group
accounted for the acquisition on that date using the purchase
method of accounting.

37. WE—EMEAR
RZZE—ZTF—A—H((WEBH]) &%
| AR B 1008k 7T (A8 70 491,000/ 7T) (48
& M Delco EuroperA U & H AR & & )F B )
M HPL & SVO Uk B Delco Europez ZBARHE °
HPL &% SVO A RIA& B Delco Participation
B.V.MZARAE] - ARASKERULEE B HIE
fS$Delco Europefy il - AEBUEE S
HAISZ BEUEE AR -

EARMEEARQTE F 2010



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mE BB RRM R (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —T—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 7. WiE— M B AR (&)
The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows: N SRR FEENT

Acquiree’s carrying
amount before
combination and

fair value
REGERTH KB
HEREERATEE
HK$’000
FETT
Net assets acquired: BUWEFEEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MEE 853
Other receivables H e IR 1,177
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIIRS 3,982
Other payables HAb R FRIE (1,006)
Amounts due to related parties FE R 5 5 0E (707)
Bank borrowings IRITIEE (3,416)
Tax payable FERTLIR (882)
1
Total consideration recognised as other payable #3274 E {th E < 3R IB R 4218 1
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEEERNFRESRA
Cash consideration paid BENRESNRE -
Bank balances and cash acquired BURIBRITEBR LIRS 3,982
3,982

Delco Europe contributed approximately HK$503,000 to the Group’s B Ui B EIE 2R EI4EE B - Delco Europe
profit for the year between the date of acquisition and the end of the  AREB/FE % F B BL49503,00078 7T ©
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 & & —E—ZTF+_-_HA=+—HIFE

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 January 2011, the Group signed a letter of intent to invest
RMB25.5 million in 1t X F #1867 A2 EE B R A 7] which is to operate
scrap vehicle recycling business in the Beijing area. The Group will
have 51% equity interest in the company. Details of the arrangement
are set out in the announcements of the Company dated on 27
January 2011.

In addition the Group also signed a letter of intent with two
independent third parties to jointly establish a subsidiary in Tianjian
for the development of metal and other recycling business in
the Tianjian zone. The Group will have 51% of equity interest in
the new subsidiary. Details of the arrangement are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated on 27 January 2011.

39. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group capitalised the shareholder’s loan
amounted to HK$223,708,000 into capital reserve. Details of which
are set in the note (i) in the consolidated statement of change in
equity.

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

38. EMREH

R-T——F—A-+HHB XEEDES
?&é [AE - BRI RP YIS TEREAR

DR (R R L TEREBOER)IREA
R #25,600,0007C » NEE#HEH %A A
51%RAHE - BRARHEZFBHNA AR H
PBR-T——F—RA-TtHZRM-

IS - $El7‘féﬁiﬁﬁu%*“’*ﬁmuﬁx”
ERE  BEXERERIL—FMER
IR R EEREESD %&T&*«%QE’J@W
X715 o AEE KA LB R F51 %MK
B BRTZHBEN AR AR =F
——F—AZttBzlf-

39. FEHREWA

FR - RNEED 223,708,000 TR E
RER BB ARGFHE - BRIFBHNGRAE

TR BRI EE (i) ©

40. AR FIME A RAFHE

Place and date of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid share capital/
establishment registered capital Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary s/ ERTRAR held by the Group Principal activities
HWELRER R B8RAH [ievgiiiies REBMEEERTER TEEH
2010 2009
“B-ZE ZETNE
Chiho-Tiande International Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 100% 100% Investment holding
(‘CT International’) (note (i) 2 April 2008 2% REER
BEaRtERARAR AERAES
(TEA B D) (W) “ZT/\¥MAZH
Chiho-Tiande Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
BARMREBRAT 16 July 2008 10,000 7T RAER
s
ZERN\ELATRA
Delco Europe (note (i) The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% N/A Purchasing agent of
18 January 1985 18,151B1T TEA the Group
i AEENRBAE

“WN\EF-At/\A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —Z—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. A RME A w1 (&)

COMPANY (continued)
Place and date of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid share capital/
establishment registered capital Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary Rl Ave BRTRAR held by the Group Principal activities
HWEARBE RYBHRAH A/ R rEEFEEERARR TEEH
2010 2009
“E-TF  CZITNF
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Purchasing agent of the
BAKI(EE)BRAF 12 May 2004 1T Group and wholesales
& of metal scrap without
“EEMERATZA processing
REEMTERERANT
BEEEHE
Hefast Holding Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Investment holding
20 Decermber 2002 100,000 REAR
Eh
ZETCETZAZTH
Chiho-Tiande (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Copper Industry Company 15 June 2009 10,0007%87C REER
Limited (‘CT HK (Copper)) Eh
BaR(ER)AEERAA ZEERAESATRA
(IBEa®BEE])
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Metals Recycling ~ Hong Kong HK$35,000,000 55% N/A Trading of metal scrap
Co., Limited {note (i) 20 September 2010 35,000,000/ 7T TER  BERGE
BAXW(ER)BESBERAR B
(B3 i e
Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) Metals The PRC 1S$10,000,000 100% 100% Processing and sales of
Recycling Company Limited 28 September 2008 10,000,000%7T metal scrap
(note (v) # MIRHEESR
BaR(ER)BEEEBARAR —EERAFAAZTAR
(Bi3E(v)
Taizhou Chino-Tiande Foundry The PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100% Processing and sales of
Company Limited (note (i) 8 December 2003 7,500,000% 7 metal scrap, production
aMBEERHEEBRAT i and sales of metal
GRN) “FE=F+-A)\R products
MIRHEERESE  £ER
HESBEM
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals The PRC US$22,682,000 100% 100% Processing and sales of
Company Limited (note (iv)) 24 December 1999 22,682,000% 7T metal scrap, production
aMBAKIEBARAF HE and sales of metal
(M) —“AANE+ZA=FMA products
MIRHEERSE  £ER
HESBEm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRMTE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE2 —Z—ZF+ - A=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 40. A2 TIMB A S5 (E)
COMPANY (continued)

Place and date of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid share capital/
establishment registered capital Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary Rl Ave BRTRAR held by the Group Principal activities
KEAREE Ry RAH A/ R rREFEEERARR TEEH
2010 2009
S B LA
Chiho-Tiande (Shanghai) Metals The PRC RMB33,500,000 51% N/A Processing and sales
Recycling Company Limited 30 September 2010 AR#33,500,0007T TEfA of metal scrap
(note v)) i MIRHERESE
LAEERMBEERERARA e I e
(FitsE))
Chiho-Tiande (Ningbo) Copper The PRC Nil N/A 100% Trading of metal scrap
Industry Company Limited 5 August 2009 z TR BEELE
(“CT Copper (Ningbo)’) i
(notes (iv) and (vi) ZEENE/\ARA
BaRb(BR) WEERAR
(BEaME(ER)])
(5 () Begvi)
notes: BisE

() The Company holds CT International directly and all other subsidiaries () ARAFREHESEEABREBELEESAMEE

indirectly. ApEEYNG I

(i) On 1 January 2010, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Delco (i) R-—Z—ZTF—HF—H » AEE L1008
Europe from HPL and SVO, the holding companies of a shareholder (HERENZBNEEFE)RERAAR
of the Company, for a consideration of EUR100 in cash which was AR A FIHPL KR SVOU g Delco Europefy 2 &
equivalent to its net asset value at that date. JRHE -

(i) On 20 September 2010, the Group established Chiho-Tiande (HK) Metals (i) R=—Z—ZTF N A -+ B - A& EHISA

Recycling Co. Ltd. with ISA Company Ltd. 55% of the equity interest is Company Ltdik 7 25 & Kb (BB ) BESEE
held by the Group. RATF] o REEFFHE ES5%HIIHE

These entities are wholly-foreign owned enterprise established in the  (iv) ZEEEANTREKININGBHEDE -
PRC.

(iv)

(v) On 30 September 2010, the Group established Chiho-Tiande (Shangha) () R-Z—ZFEAA=+H - AEEE EK
Metals Recycling Company Limited with 8K, 51% of the equity KM EBEAXRINBEERERAA - &
interest is held by the Group. EERFBES1%MAE -

(vi) CT Copper (Ningbo) was established on 5 August 2009 in the PRC as (v BEAME(ER) R -2 AFEN\ARB NS

a wholly owned subsidiary of CT HK (Copper). CT Copper (Ningbo) was B ABAEBARENZEMNB AR - &
deregistered on 9 June 2010. AE(BR)N_T—TFANAEEG
o

EARMEEARITE FR 2010
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFEMBGIHE

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-BA=1+—-HLFE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZERTRFE ZTT+F ZTEN\E —TThEF ZE-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT TAT TAT THx

RESULTS E 3

Revenue Yzs 1,272,930 1,798,332 2,505,168 2,339,243 5,931,589
Profit (loss) before tax BRBIADEF (E18) 44,596 105,921 (271,298) 587,194 482,034
Income tax (expense) charge  FriSHi (IS )H% (9,223) (22,958) 71,166 (167,540)  (129,478)
Profit (loss) for the year FEFI(E518) 35,373 82,963  (200,132) 419,654 352,556

At 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZEEXR —ETEE ZTTNE ZTTHhE —ZT-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHL FAT FHL FHAT THET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE

Total assets BEREAE 545,333 779,434 1,110,846 1,851,728 = 3,581,367
Total liabilities BEeE (462,399)  (695,997) (1,115,883) (1,433,630) (1,934,686)
Net assets (iabilities) FEEER) 82,934 183,437 (5,037) 418,098 1,646,681

This report is published in both English and Chinese languages. A& AP E X FHIEZE S HIR - FERIEXFE
Should there be any inconsistency between the Chinese and English A3 8 7 FEIS 2y » A28 X A2 o
versions, the English version shall prevail.
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